
 

 

REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON, TX 75570 
 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 

on Wednesday, July 26, 2023, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, 

TX 75570. 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 

on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 

held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 

per speaker. 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding the minutes for the June 28, 2023 

Regular Meeting and the July 19, 2023 True-Up Workshop. 

1



 

 

V. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VI. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the third quarter FY 2023 Financial Statements. 

 

Presentation of the third quarter FY 2023 Financial Statements will be by Tara 

Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230726-01 approving the 

third quarter FY 2023 Financial Statements. 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the third quarter FY 2023 Investment Report. 

 

Presentation of the third quarter FY 2023 Investment Report will be by Tara Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230726-02 approving the 

third quarter FY 2023 Investment Report. 

C. Discuss and consider adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, Sale, 

and Delivery of Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds 

(Regional Water System Project), Taxable Series 2023, and Approving and 

Authorizing Instruments and Procedures Relating thereto. 

 

This item is the fifth bond resolution for our Regional Water System Project.  This 

item on the agenda equals $14.4 million in funding.  This funding would be for 

design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of the Regional Water System.  

This is the third of four annual bond closings on the $200M commitment through 

TWDB.  Staff recommends approval.   

 

2



 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230726-03 authorizing the 

issuance, sale, and delivery of  Riverbend Water Resources District contract 

revenue bonds (Regional Water System Project), Taxable Series 2023, and 

approving and authorizing instruments and procedures relating thereto.  

 

D. Discussion and possible action approving a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to execute an amendment to the water and 

wastewater service agreement with the City of Maud, Texas. 

 

This agenda item pertains to the current RWRD/Maud water and wastewater 

services agreement.  This proposed amendment to the contract would be to update 

Section 3.2.e True-Up to match the process that both RWRD and the City of Maud 

would like to follow during the life of this contract.  It would also make this section 

follow more of the same schedule as we currently follow for the TWU True-Up 

process.  We think this will make the processes more streamlined and, if we 

continue to add other service contracts, will make it easier to follow the same 

timeline requirements for all contracts that require a true-up.  Staff recommends 

approval. 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230726-04 authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to execute an amendment to the water and wastewater 

service agreement with the City of Maud, Texas. 

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding the FY 2022-2023 Member Entities 

True Up for use in FY 2024. 

 

TWU made their annual presentation of the Member Entities’ True-Up report on 

Wednesday, July 19th.  The proposed water production rate is shown to increase 

from $1.2341/1000 Gallons used to $1.2606/1000 Gallons used.  This is a 2.15% 

increase overall.  The administrative overhead cost is proposed to go from 6.57% 

to 6.72%.  The board can act on approving the true-up at this meeting, but typically 

has chosen not to act until the September meeting when the RWRD budget is 

considered and approved. 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230726-05 approving the 

FY 2022-2023 Member Entities’ True-Up for use in FY 2024.  

F. Discussion and possible action regarding the City of Maud Service Contract 

True-Up. 

 

RWRD and City of Maud staff met on Wednesday, July 19th, to discuss the True-

Up to the water and wastewater services agreement.  The proposed True-Up for FY 

3



 

 

23 results in an increase in the monthly contract amount for FY 24 of $1,805.98.  

This would bring the monthly contract invoice amount for FY 24 to $13,133.98.  

The board can act on approving the true-up at this meeting, but staff would request 

following the same process the board has followed historically with the TWU True-

Up process.  Typically, the board has chosen not to act until the September meeting 

when the RWRD budget is considered and approved. 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230726-06 approving the 

FY 2022-2023 City of Maud Service Contract True-Up for use in FY 2024.  

 

VII. RIVERBEND REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in 

closed or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving 

legal advice from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters 

(Section 551.072); discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing 

personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 

551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board 

of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item on this 

agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and 

will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

IX. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, August 23, 2023, at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 

4



 

 

*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who 

may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices 

at (903) 831-0091, as soon as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the 

appropriate arrangements. 

5



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 

June 28, 2023  

Regular Meeting Minutes &  

July 19, 2023 

Special Called Workshop Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

June 28, 2023 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Tina Veal-Gooch, President 

of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:03 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Van Alexander, President  

Steve Mayo, Vice President 

Fred Milton, Treasurer  

Tina Veal-Gooch, Past President 

 

Directors Absent:  

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Van Alexander led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

None. 

 

IV. Consent Agenda Items 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding May 24, 2023 Regular Meeting minutes. 

 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Tina Veal Gooch to approve the 

Consent Agenda Item. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

8



 

  

V. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority 

(SRBA). 

 

No report. No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC). 

 

TAC Board met yesterday. Hunting leases were renewed. Bylaws were updated based on 

changes made in the legislature. A real estate agreement with Braven was revised to extend 

it four months due to a change in leadership. A contract was signed with a rail contractor 

to do $733,000 worth of improvements on the rail system. A facility use agreement was 

also executed with Trinity Rail Maintenance Services to do maintenance on rail cars on the 

TAC footprint. Two leases on existing tenants were been renewed. A new lease was signed 

with East Texas Custom All Terrain. A press release will be posted tomorrow regarding 

where TexAmericas Center ranks among other Industrial Parks. In 2020 they were ranked 

8th. The last two years they were ranked 5th. This year they are ranked the 3rd best Industrial 

Park in the country. This increase in ranking by Business Facilities Magazine was due to 

the “speed to market” that TAC can provide through the inhouse logistics division, which 

is a unique service provided by TAC. In addition, TexAmericas is the only redevelopment 

authority with facilities previously used by the military that was considered in the ranking. 

 

No action taken.  

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

No report. No action taken. 

 

VI. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the Executive 

Director/CEO to execute an interlocal agreement for employees’ health benefits with TML 

Health Benefits Pool. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided information on the renewal of the TML Coverage. Staff has received 

the proposed employee medical insurance plan from TML Health Benefits Pool, which 

would become effective on 10/1/23 for the new fiscal year.  There are four new plan options 

that are being offered by TML for consideration for this upcoming year or we can stay with 

the current plan.  All plan options would be an increase when compared with the total cost 

from the previous year.  Those options, and the current plan costs, are shown in the agenda 

packet.  For all four new options, the out-of-pocket cost and/or the deductible costs would 

go up.  The premium cost also increases between 1.82%-23.71% depending on which 

option is selected.  Staying with the current plan would increase the premium 30%, but it 

holds out-of-pocket and deductible costs at the same rate as this current year. Dental 

coverage has an increase of 8%.  The current vision plan will remain unchanged for this 

upcoming plan year.  TML Health Benefits Pool requires us to decide to renew our plan in 

9



 

  

July, but it will be before the next board meeting. This agenda item is requesting 

authorization to select one of these TML options, execute the needed paperwork to renew, 

and submit it by TML’s July deadline. After reviewing the options, staff recommends 

staying with the current plan for the upcoming year to keep the out of pocket and deductible 

costs the same for the employees next year.  

 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Tina Veal Gooch for approval of 

RESO 20230628-01 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute an interlocal 

agreement for employees’ health benefits with TML Health Benefits Pool. The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the Executive 

Director/CEO to request additional funding from the Texas Water Development Board 

(TWDB) to cover costs related to design and construction of the Regional Water System 

Facility. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that this item pertains to the funding for the Johnny L. Branson 

Regional Water Treatment Facility.  RWRD was successful in securing $200 million in 

funding through the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) in 2020.  The needed 

funding was secured using cost estimates from 2019.  Since that time, several things have 

happened in the market and in the construction world that have driven costs up 

dramatically.  Cost estimates for the project have more than doubled since the 2019 cost 

estimates were done.  This is not a unique issue just for this project.  This is a statewide, 

and nationwide issue, as prices everywhere have skyrocketed over the past three to four 

years.  As such, more funding is needed to finish the construction of the Regional Water 

Treatment Facility.  This item, if approved, would authorize staff to prepare an application 

for additional funding through the TWDB Drinking Water State Revolving Fund.   

 

A motion was made by Tina Veal Gooch and seconded by Fred Milton to approve RESO 

20230628-02 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to request additional funding from 

the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) to cover costs related to design and 

construction of the Regional Water System Facility. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

VII.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

Fred Milton provided that he spoke with the Interim Chair of  the Public Utilities 

Commission, Kathleen Jackson at the TWCA conference. She has been keeping up with 

our project and is pleased with the progress we are making. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

 

Mat Garcia with Pape-Dawson provided the following update on the Regional Water 

System Project: 

• The draft Engineering Feasibility Report and the draft Environmental Assessment 

report have been provided to RWRD staff for review and comment.  

10



 

  

• Request for Proposals for the Various Design Consultants Agreements has been 

posted and are due July 21, 2023.  

▪ For the Intake Structure package, 114 entities have downloaded the RFQ. 34 are 

engineering companies. 

▪ For the Raw Water Main package, 99 entities have downloaded the RFQ. 33 are 

engineering companies. 

▪ For the Water Treatment Plant package, 140 entities have downloaded the RFQ. 

41 are engineering companies. 

▪ For the Finished Water Main package, 114 entities have downloaded the RFQ. 34 

are engineering companies. 

▪ We will assist the District in reviewing the Responses, and have set up an 

interview window, if needed, from August 28 to September 8. 

▪ We anticipate making a recommendation to the Board no later than the September 

Board meeting. 

▪ We have also reached out over 40 minority and women-owned businesses to 

ensure the District stays in compliance with the goals required as part of its 

funding through the SRF. 

 

Kyle talked to the Corps regarding their letter of concurrence with project viability under 

the interim rule curve. It just  needs to be signed and sent to us. The three required 

documents, EID, EFR and this letter, will be submitted as they are completed.  

 

Intake Permitting: One thing that has been delaying the submitting of the EID and the EFR 

to TWDB is a ruling from the Corps on whether they would allow Riverbend to pull the 

permitting portion of the intake construction away from the Ultimate Rule Curve studies. 

Dawson and Associates had a meeting with USACE on Friday. The USACE 

representatives did not see any issues, in theory, with the construction of the intake prior 

to the implementation of the Ultimate Rule Curve. That decision comes with the caveat 

that Riverbend will operate at the Interim Rule Curve that is currently in place until the 

Ultimate Rule Curve is implemented. That allows Riverbend to get lined out on what the 

Corps expects on the application for the intake. That language will need to be in the EID 

and the EFR so it can be turned to TWDB that will indicate we are clear with the Corps to 

move forward with the project so TWDB can approve our documents and release project 

funds. At this point, the RFQ process can move forward because funds should be released 

at about the same time that a design team is chosen.  

 

Ultimate Rule Curve: The Cultural Resources Study is out for contract and should be back 

by the end of July. Mid July is when we should hear from the Corps regarding any extra 

funding needed based on numbers they’re seeing from contracting. 

 

Industrial Wastewater Plant: Email from RRAD Public Works requested a meeting in mid-

July to discuss next steps for the new plant. Location is still a major concern that will 

involve TexAmericas Center as well as any other entities that may be using the  

 

True-Up: Still aiming for having the document out July 12, 2023 and planning the meeting 

for July 19, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Riverbend offices.  

 

No action taken.  

 

11



 

  

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 12:25 p.m. 

 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:30 p.m. with quorum pursuant to sections 

551.071, 551.072, and 551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 1:23 p.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 1:23 p.m.  

 

IX. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend True-up Workshop, July 19, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A 

Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, July 26, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A Texas 

Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Tina Veal Gooch and 

seconded by Fred Milton to adjourn the meeting at 1:24 p.m. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 

June 28, 2023, were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Van Alexander, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

12



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

True-Up Minutes 

13



 

 

  

Special Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Work Session Minutes  

July 19, 2023 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

228 Texas Ave, Suite A, New Boston, TX 75570 

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Van Alexander, President of 

the Board, called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.     

  

Directors Present:  

Van Alexander, President  

Steve Mayo, Vice President  

Fred Milton, Treasurer  

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

Directors Absent: 

Tina Veal-Gooch, Past President 

  

 Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Tara Houck, Chief Financial Officer 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

        Becky Melton, Executive Assistant/HR Manager 

 

Public Present: 

See attached list. 

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Van Alexander led the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

III.  Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Presentation and discussion regarding the Regional Water System Facilities Fund 

Budget and Project Update. 

 

Tara Houck presented the Regional Water System Facilities Fund Budget for review.  

 

Kyle Dooley presented an update on the Regional Water System project. To include 

additional bonds that will be approved next week. Thus far, we have taken out $111 

million of the $200 million. The next bond set to be reviewed next week will be for 

$14.4 million. Closing should be the last week in August. The first 2 sets of bonds were 

14



 

 

  

60% taxable and 40% tax exempt. This third bond will not likely have tax exempt funds 

becaue there were spending requirements that were not met. The bonds taken out next 

time should have a bigger tax exempt portion to make up for that. Taxable versus tax 

exempt funds depend on what the money is being spent on. The EID and the EFR will 

be reviewed by TWDB later this week. The RFQ for design on the new facility has 

been posted. Proposals are required to be submitted by this Friday the 21st. They will 

be reviewed between now and September.  

 

Ron Humphrey, Mayor of New Boston, asked if Mr. Milton could come to the next city 

council meeting to explain the increases and how it may affect the citizens of New 

Boston. Mr. Dooley and Mr. Milton will be there and will bring scenarios on how the 

new rate may affect water bills. Wayne Dial, New Boston’s City Administrator also 

asked that they explain to citizens how the debt repayment works while the water 

faciltiy project is ongoing. 

 

 No action taken. 

 

B. Presentation and discussion of Member Cities’ True-Up for use in FY 2024. 

 

Tricia Briggs of Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU), presented the 2022-2023 Member 

Cities’ True-up for use in FY 2024.  

 

Gary Smith provided information specific to completed, ongoing, and future projects 

for TWU. 

 

Kyle Dooley informed the Riverbend board and the guests present that the True-Up 

document will be further reviewed until it is considered for a vote by the Riverbend 

board at a regular board meeting to be held on September 27, 2023. 

 

 No action taken. 

 

IV.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Mr. Dooley requested that any questions related to the True-Up, be directed to him 

and he will relay those questions to TWU for a response.  He is available to answer 

any questions related to the new water facility project and the Facility Fund Budget.  

 

He also requested that all member entities please attend the August board meeting 

on the 23rd as there will be additional discussion regarding flouride with Dr. 

Shambarger.  

 

 

 

15



 

 

  

V. Next Riverbend Meetings & Activities:  

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, July 26, 2023, at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 

Offices. 

 

VI. Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, Van Alexander adjourned the meeting at 

11:00 a.m.  

 

The minutes of this Special Called Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors 

meeting on July 19, 2023 were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 

2023. 

 

 

___________________________________          

Van Alexander, President  

 

Attest: 

 

___________________________________ 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO       

  

 
 

16



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. A. 

RWRD RESO 20230726-01 

Third Quarter FY 2023 

Financial Statements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



 
 

 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230726-01 

 

APPROVING THE 3rd QUARTER FY 2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas Constitution, 

existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special District Local 

Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors accepts and approves 

quarterly financial statements, which provide for the fiduciary guidance of Riverbend Water 

Resources funds. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

accepts and approves the 3rd Quarter FY 2023 financials. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of July 2023 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

Attached: Third Quarter FY 2023 Financial Statements  

18



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Current assets: 
     Cash and cash equivalents 141,707$            -$                       1,726,606$        1,868,313$       
     Accounts receivable 17,436 265,663 480,612 763,711
     Interest receivable 445,536 445,536
     Interfund accounts 21,498 - 10,059 31,557
     Restricted assets:

          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,695,274 668,853 5,364,127
          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for construction - 22,090,246 20,048 22,110,294
          Investments restricted for construction - 70,961,809 70,961,809
          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for operations - - 905,609 905,609
     Prepaid expenses 1,790 - 3,333 5,123
     Inventories - - 83,326 83,326
          Total current assets 182,431 98,458,528 3,898,446 102,539,405

Noncurrent assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents  - restricted for bond debt reserves - 2,866,414 2,530,353 5,396,767
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
     Equipment - - 399,605 399,605
     Utility system - - 15,404,507 15,404,507
     Intangible assets - - 247,232 247,232
     Construction in progress - 16,733,107 27,335 16,760,442
     Total capital assets - 16,733,107 16,078,679 32,811,786
          Total noncurrent assets - 19,599,521 18,609,032 38,208,553

TOTAL ASSETS 182,431 118,058,049 22,507,478 140,747,958

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
     Accounts payable 85,570 34,787 120,357
     Payroll liabilities - - 29,626 29,626
     Interfund accounts 10,509 21,498 - 32,007
     Due to North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group - - - -
     Accrued interest payable - 193,722 44,994 238,716
     Accrued compensated absences - current portion - - 21,553 21,553
     Revenue bonds payable - current portion - 3,150,000 410,000 3,560,000
          Total current liabilities 10,509 3,450,790 540,960 4,002,259

Long-term liabilities:
     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 59,762 59,762
     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 104,895,000 6,595,000 111,490,000
          Total long-term liabilities - 104,895,000 6,654,762 111,549,762

TOTAL LIABILITES 10,509 108,345,790 7,195,722 115,552,021

NET POSITION
     Net investment in capital assets - 1,630,125 10,088,885 11,719,010
     Restricted for bond reserves - 8,079,165 3,204,830 11,283,995
     Restricted for construction - 2,969 20,048 23,017
     Unrestricted 171,922 - 1,997,993 2,169,915
TOTAL NET POSITION 171,922$            9,712,259$            15,311,756$      25,195,937$     

19



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities
Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Member fees 140,522$                -$                          -$                            140,522$              
          Army volumetric charge - - 2,306,063 2,306,063
          Army water supply charge - - 178,305 178,305
          Commercial and residential charge - - 153,752 153,752
           Infrastructure Services - - 85,114 85,114
      Other revenue - - 20,713 20,713
          Total operating revenues 140,522 - 2,743,947 2,884,469

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Accounting and audit 4,960 - - 4,960
     Analyticals - - 79,028 79,028
     Capital replacement - - 141,004 141,004
     Community relations 3,099 - - 3,099
     Conferences & seminars 1,529 - - 1,529
     Consulting 137,111 - 4,549 141,033
     Dues and memberships 8,041 - - 8,041
     Engineering services 4,625 - - 4,625
     Equipment maintenance, repair and fuel - - 30,875 30,875
     Equipment rental 169 169
     Insurance - - 42,207 42,207
     Materials - - 155,399 155,399
     Meetings expense 4,063 - - 4,063
     Military affairs - - - -
     Miscellaneous 583 - - 583
     Permits - - 32,118 32,118
     Repairs - - 135,233 135,233
     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and benefits 133,215 - 716,178 849,393
     Supplies - - 51,152 51,152
     Travel and training 8,657 - - 8,657
     Utilities - - 138,535 138,535
     Waste disposal - - 28,026 28,026
     Water purchase cost - - 277,926 277,926
     Web design and maintenance 1,681 - - 1,681
     Infrastructure services - - 93,394 93,394
     Overhead allocation - water - - 150,858 150,858
     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 163,966 163,966
     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 165,310 165,310
          Total operating expenses before depreciation 307,564 - 2,405,928 2,712,865

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (167,042) - 338,019 170,977
     Depreciation - - 626,668 626,668
Operating income (loss) (167,042) - (288,649) (455,691)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Facility charges revenue - - 1,097,433 1,097,433
     Minimum monthly payments - 3,261,241 - 3,261,241
     Interest revenue 47 1,904,537 48,338 1,952,922
     Project admin fees - - 10,078 10,078
     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment - 318,605 - 318,605
     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets - - 25,887 25,887
     Interest expense - (1,034,687) (189,890) (1,224,577)
     Wire fees - (1,497) - (1,497)
     Franchise fees expense - - (79,259) (79,259)
     Special projects expense (12,500) - - (12,500)
          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (12,453) 4,448,199 912,587 5,348,333

Income (loss) before transfers (179,495) 4,448,199 623,938 4,892,642

Transfers in (out) 230,000 - (230,000) -

Changes in net position 50,505 4,448,199 393,938 4,892,642
Net position, beginning of year 121,417 5,264,060 14,917,818 20,303,295

Net position, end of 3rd quarter 171,922$                 9,712,259$                15,311,756$            25,195,937$          

20



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with % of
Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services 192,158$      140,522$      (51,636)$       73.13%
     Total operating revenues 192,158 140,522 (51,636) 73.13%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Advertising 1,200 - 1,200 0.00%
     Accounting & audit 4,500 4,960 (460) 110.22%
     Community relations 8,000 3,099 4,901 38.74%
     Conferences & seminars 4,700 1,529 3,171 32.53%
     Consulting 200,000 137,111 62,889 68.56%
     Dues & memberships 7,883 8,041 (158) 102.00%
     Engineering services 20,000 4,625 15,375 23.13%
     Legal & professional fees 27,500 - 27,500 0.00%
     Meetings expense 6,000 4,063 1,937 67.72%
     Military affairs 11,000 - 11,000 0.00%
     Office supplies & expense 3,900 583 3,317 14.95%
     Regional planning projects 60,000 - 60,000 0.00%
     Salaries, wages & benefits 177,763 133,215 44,548 74.94%
     Travel & training 18,000 8,657 9,343 48.09%
     Web design & maintenance 4,000 1,681 2,319 42.03%
          Total operating expenses 554,446 307,564 246,882 55.47%
Operating income (loss) (362,288) (167,042) (195,246) 46.11%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Interest Revenue - 47 47
     Special projects expense (50,000) (12,500) 37,500 25.00%
     Use of prior year equity 182,288 - (182,288) 0.00%
          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 132,288 (12,453) (144,741) 9.41%

Income (loss) before transfers (230,000) (179,495) 50,505 78.04%

Transfer in 230,000 230,000 - 100.00%

Change in net position - 50,505 50,505

Net position, beginning of year 121,417 121,417 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 3rd quarter 121,417$      171,922$      50,505 141.60%

21



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services -$             -$             -$             
     Total operating revenues - - -

OPERATING EXPENSES
      Expenses - - -
          Total operating expenses - - -

Operating income (loss) - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Minimum monthly payments 4,296,050 3,261,241 (1,034,809) 75.91%
     Interest Revenue 2,161,063 1,904,537 (256,526) 88.13%
     Interest Expense (1,565,230) (1,034,687) 530,543 66.10%
     Wire fees (1,750) (1,497) 253 85.54%
     Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments (538,532) 318,605 857,137 -59.16%

     Bond Issuance Costs (225,000) - 225,000 0.00%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 4,126,601 4,448,199 321,598 107.79%

Change in net position before transfers 4,126,601 4,448,199 321,598 107.79%

Net position, beginning of year 5,264,060$    5,264,060 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 3rd quarter 9,390,661$    9,712,259$    321,598$       103.42%

22



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
WET UTILITIES FUND
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services 3,994,975$           2,723,234$      (1,271,741)$ 68.17%
     Other revenue - 20,713 20,713
     Total operating revenues 3,994,975 2,743,947 (1,251,028) 0.00%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Analytical 150,000 79,028 70,972 52.69%
     Capital Replacement 415,100 141,004 274,096 33.97%
     Consulting 60,000 4,549 55,451 7.58%
     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 52,000 30,875 21,125 59.38%
     Equipment rental 11,000 169 10,831 1.54%
     Insurance 56,747 42,207 14,540 74.38%
     Materials 253,200 155,399 97,801 61.37%
     Permits 50,500 32,118 18,382 63.60%
     Repairs 280,500 135,233 145,267 48.21%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,133,127 716,178 416,949 63.20%
     Supplies & materials 79,100 51,152 27,948 64.67%
     Utilities 198,000 138,535 59,465 69.97%
     Waste disposal 56,000 28,026 27,974 50.05%

     Water purchase cost 378,057 277,926 100,131 73.51%

     Infrastructure services 102,679 93,394 9,285 90.96%
     Overhead allocation - water 196,606 150,858 45,747 76.73%
     Overhead allocation - wastewater 213,558 163,966 49,592 76.78%
     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 215,372 165,310 50,061 76.76%
          Total operating expenses 3,901,545 2,405,928 1,495,617 61.67%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 93,430 338,019 244,589 361.79%

Depreciation 799,500 626,668 172,832 78.38%

Operating income (loss) (706,070) (288,649) 417,421 -40.88%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,504,031 1,097,433 (406,598) 72.97%

     Interest revenue 14,000 48,338 34,338 345.27%

     Project Admin Fees 41,921 10,078 (31,843) 24.04%

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets - 25,887 25,887

     Interest expense (445,885) (189,890) 255,995 42.59%

     Franchise fees expense (109,035) (79,259) 29,776 72.69%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,005,032 912,587 (92,445) 90.80%

Income (loss) before transfers 298,962 623,938 324,976 208.70%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (230,000) - 100.00%

Change in net position 68,962 393,938 324,976 571.24%

Net position, beginning of year 14,917,818 14,917,818 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 3rd quarter 14,986,780$          15,311,756$     324,976$      102.17%

23



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Member fees 140,522$                    150,392$                     (9,870)$                 -6.56%
          Total operating revenues 140,522 150,392 (9,870) -6.56%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Accounting & audit 4,960 4,500 460
     Community relations 3,099 1,382 1,717 124.24%
     Conferences & seminars 1,529 2,878 (1,349) -46.87%
     Consulting 137,111 139,368 (2,257) -1.62%
     Dues & memberships 8,041 7,372 669 9.07%
     Engineering services 4,625 405 4,220 1041.98%
     Legal & professional fees - 13,936 (13,936) -100.00%
     Meetings expense 4,063 2,896 1,167 40.30%
     Military affairs - 2,750 (2,750) -100.00%
     Office supplies and expense 583 702 (119) -16.95%
     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 133,215 126,949 6,266 4.94%
     Travel & training 8,657 9,042 (385) -4.26%
     Web design & maintenance 1,681 4,920 (3,239) -65.83%
          Total operating expenses 307,564 317,100 (9,536) -3.01%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (167,042) (166,708) (334) -0.20%

     Depreciation - - -

Operating income (loss) (167,042) (166,708) (334) 0.20%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Interest revenue 47 101 (54) -39.08%

     Special projects expense (12,500) (50,005) 37,505

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (12,453) (49,904) 37,451 75.05%

Income (loss) before transfers (179,495) (216,612) 37,117 17.14%

Transfers in (out) 230,000 230,000 -

Change in net position 50,505 13,388 37,117 -277.24%

Net position, beginning of year 121,417 199,306 (77,889) -39.08%

Net position, end of 3rd quarter 171,922$                     212,694$                      (40,772)$                -19.17%

24



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services: - - -
          Total operating revenues - - -

-
OPERATING EXPENSES
    Regional Water System capital outlay - 7,635,693 (7,635,693) -100.00%
          Total operating expenses - 7,635,693 (7,635,693) -100.00%-

Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds - (7,635,693) 7,635,693 -100.00%

    Bond Proceeds - 7,635,693 (7,635,693) -100.00%
Operating income (loss) - - - -
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -
     Minimum monthly payments 3,261,241 3,261,103 138 0.00%
     Interest Revenue 1,904,537 275,720 1,628,817 590.75%
     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment 318,605 (640,188) 958,793 -149.77%
     Interest Expense (1,034,687) (519,761) (514,926) 99.07%
     Wire fees (1,497) - (1,497)
     Bond Issuance Costs - (2,353,454) 2,353,454 -100.00%
          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 4,448,199 23,420 4,424,779 18893.16%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 4,448,199 23,420 12,060,472 51496.46%

Transfers in (out) - - -

Net position, beginning of year 5,264,060 4,221,294 1,042,766 24.70%

Net position, end of 3rd quarter 9,712,259$                  4,244,714$                  13,103,238$          308.70%

25



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
WET UTILITIES FUND
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Army volumetric charge 2,306,063$                2,434,916$                  (128,853)$            -5.29%
          Army water supply charge 178,305 180,568 (2,263) -1.25%
          Commercial & residential charge 153,752 120,627 33,125 27.46%
           Infrastructure services 85,114 - 85,114
     Other revenue 20,713 1,625 19,088 1174.65%
          Total operating revenues 2,743,947 2,737,736 6,211 0.23%

-
OPERATING EXPENSES -
     Analyticals 79,028 82,315 (3,287) -3.99%
     Capital Replacement 141,004 195,058 (54,054) -27.71%
     Consulting 4,549 31,002 (26,453) -85.33%
     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 30,875 54,515 (23,640) -43.36%
     Equipment rental 169 2,281 (2,112) -92.59%
     Insurance 42,207 36,661 5,546 15.13%
     Materials 155,399 117,205 38,194 32.59%
     Permits 32,118 32,399 (281) -0.87%
     Repairs 135,233 126,732 8,501 6.71%
     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 716,178 698,666 17,512 2.51%
     Supplies & materials 51,152 20,393 30,759 150.83%
     Utilities 138,535 127,980 10,555 8.25%
     Waste disposal 28,026 35,828 (7,802) -21.78%
     Water purchase cost 277,926 242,650 35,276 14.54%
      Infrastructure services 93,394 - 93,394
     Overhead allocation - water 150,858 140,390 10,468 7.46%
     Overhead allocation - wastewater 163,966 152,588 11,378 7.46%
     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 165,310 153,841 11,469 7.46%
          Total operating expenses 2,405,928 2,250,504 155,424 6.91%-
Operating income (loss) before depreciation 338,019 487,232 (149,213) -30.62%
     Depreciation 626,668 607,833 18,835 3.10%

Operating income (loss) (288,649) (120,601) (168,048) 139.34%-
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -
     Facility charges revenue 1,097,433 1,085,472 11,961 1.10%
     Interest revenue 48,338 14,910 33,428 224.20%
     Project admin fees 10,078 27,119 (17,041) 62.84%

     Interest expense (189,890) (255,415) 65,525 25.65%

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets 25,887 - 25,887

     Bond issuance costs - (65,000) 65,000 100.00%
     Franchise fees expense (79,259) (91,202) 11,943 13.10%
          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 912,587 715,884 196,703 27.48%

Income (loss) before transfers 623,938 595,283 28,655 4.81%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (230,000) - 0.00%

Change in net position 393,938 365,283 28,655 7.84%

Net position, beginning of year 14,917,818 14,707,905 209,913 1.43%

Net position, end of 3rd quarter 15,311,756$               15,073,188$                 238,568$               1.58%

26



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. B. 

RWRD RESO 20230726-02 

Third Quarter FY 2023 

Investment Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230726-02 

 

APPROVING THE 3rd QUARTER FY 2023 INVESTMENT REPORT   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 

required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 

Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-bearing 

accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

accepts and approves the 3rd Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of July 2023 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

Attached: Third Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report  

28



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SCHEDTll,f, O}- INVESTM []NTS
f,NT!'RPRISE }'TINDS
For thr Three Months l:nded Jun. J0. 2023

l \' nds

Identificrtion
Number

Msturity
Ihle

Blhnce
03t31t2023

Interrsl
lncome

06/30/2023
Belence

06t30/2023

Accrrrd
lnt Rec

o6t30/7023

'l'rsosfcrs

ln/(Ort)
P.r Policy

Nel
Dcposils/

lVilhdrawsls
Administrative Fund

operations
Restricled - Region D Plannin8

Operations

wet lhiliries lrund

Operations

Restrict€d bood sinkinS

Restricled bond reserves

Restricted conslruction funds

Restricted operations

RcSional Wale, S!,stem Facililies Fund

Restrictcd - Minimum Monlhly Payments

Reslricted - 20204 Construclion
Restricted - 20208 Construction
Restricted - 20204 Revenue

Restricted - 20208 Revenue

Restricred - 2020A Interest & Redemption

Restricted - 20208 Interest & Redemption

Restricted - 20204 Construction Escrow

Restricted - 20208 Construction Escrow

Restricted - 20224 Construction Escrow

Restricted - 20228 Construction Escrow

Restricted - 2022A Construction Escrow

Restricted - 20228 Construction Escrow

266,617

r,989,090

609,226

20,035

903.830

2.285,293
( 125,540)

I,t99
t3

|.779

t.726.2t5
2.568.782

610,425

20.04E

905.609

50003704

8009740

457060

94.004

t3. 160

3.586

$ 5.000Daily chccking

Moncy Markcl
Daily savings

Daily checking

Daily checkinS

Daily checking

D6ily checking

Money Ma*€l

Daily Savings

Money Markel
Moncy Markel
Money Markel
Money Market
Money Markel
Money Market
Bot Short-'ferm Cssh Fund

Bot Short-Term Cash Fund

Bol Short- Itrm Cash Fufld

Bot Short-Term Cash Fund

U.S. Treasury Notes

tJ.S. Treasury Notes

(84.070) $

lt
I

t24.934
| 3. t7l
3.587

$$t;

I]

E,001

37

3.845

27

24

I

2,090

r.863

t.109
381

8.341

18.971

tM,330
t3.t89

396,097

277,693

(825.755)

7 t7,229
(2.592)

(37)
(1,645)

301t380
2037890

50022709

t0097f2
E009716

E009El3

E009724

E2-44 t6-01-0
E2-4405-01-3

82-5428-01-4

82-5429-0 t -2

82-5428-0 t -4

82-5429-0 t -2

587.180

674

t. t23
351.962

t.098.056
3.724,600

1.749.202

1.22t,017
2.438.129

8.083,28 t

6,53'.t.275

44,E81,123

29,92t.4t5

1709.4241

3t9,447
6t,647

425.654

283,t70

473.398
(388.220)

16t.1211
206.664

138.059

(662.533)

010.3?2)
4.504

7.064

2.468.752

1,562.916

12.702.3331
( r.8 r4. r86)

35 l,l8 t

1,925

1.044

9E6,370

t.521,74E

3.063,176

I,639.2r3
989,003

2.458,803

t0.5 r 1,775

8,t27.696
42.576,887

28.384.922

(244.tt5q)

(5.963)

( r44.58ri)
(55.6{r4)

Iinal - All lilrds _t_rltj.uiti $ 908.609 S

Th€ inveslment schedule of Riverbend Waler Resources District is in compliaflce with the Public Funds lnvestmmt Act and the Districts Inveslmcnt Polacy

S.J.o-

$ 5,7r7.t91 $ 106,606,514 $ 445.536

l rra Houck. CPA
Chief Financial Officer

21695

21109
2t2t7
2t74t
2t733

1.974

9.734

38.n2
29.97E

223.934

119.784

29



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. C. 

RWRD RESO 20230726-03 

Series 2023 Bond Resolution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30



 

1 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION 20230726-03 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE, AND DELIVERY OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT CONTRACT REVENUE 

BONDS (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT), TAXABLE SERIES 2023, 

AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING INSTRUMENTS AND 

PROCEDURES RELATING THERETO  

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”) was created by the Texas 

Legislature in 2009 as a conservation and reclamation district created under and essential to 

accomplish the purpose of Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, as set forth in Title 6, 

Special District Local Laws Code, Subtitle L, Municipal Water Districts, Chapter 9601, effective 

June 19, 2009 as a water district with statutory powers including the authority to acquire any and 

all storage rights and storage capacity in a reservoir or other water sources inside or outside the 

boundaries of the Issuer, and to acquire the right to take water from that reservoir or source, subject 

to the rights or permits held by municipalities or other persons; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously issued its Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

System Project), Taxable Series 2020A and Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System 

Project), Series 2020B (collectively, the “Series 2020 Bonds”) pursuant to Resolution Nos. 

20201028-003 and 20201028-004, respectively (collectively, the “Series 2020 Bond 

Resolutions”), and its Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System Project), Taxable Series 

2022A and Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System Project), Series 2022B (collectively, 

the “Series 2022 Bonds”) pursuant to Resolution Nos. 20220126-07 and 20220126-08, 

respectively (collectively, the “Series 2022 Bond Resolutions”), in order finance improvements to 

certain “Company Facilities” as defined in said Series 2020 Bond Resolutions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the bonds hereinafter authorized are being issued and secured on a parity with 

the Outstanding Parity Obligations with respect to the pledge of the Pledged Revenues (as defined 

herein); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously identified regional water infrastructure projects 

under the Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study to be completed in order to improve and 

operate the Company Facilities; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Cities of Annona, Avery, Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, New Boston, 

Redwater, Texarkana, and Wake Village, Central Bowie Water Supply Corporation and Oak 

Grove Water Supply Corporation (each, a “Member Entity” and collectively, the “Member 

Entities”) desire to effectuate the improvement of the Company Facilities pursuant to the 

Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study (the “Planned Improvements”) and provide for 

regional water service, including that needed by the Member Entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has entered into a Water Distribution and Supply Contract (each, a 

“Contract” and collectively, the “Contracts”) with each Member Entity with respect to the funding 

and construction by the Issuer, for the benefit of the Member Entities, of the Planned 

Improvements and any additional regional improvements or enhancements; and 

 

31



 

2 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Issuer is authorized to issue the bonds hereinafter 

authorized pursuant to the Issuer Act, the Contracts, and other applicable law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has received Resolution Nos. 20-075 and 20-076 from the Texas 

Water Development Board (the “TWDB”) approving financial assistance to the Issuer in the 

aggregate amount of $199,700,000 in multi-year financing, including the purchase of the Issuer’s 

Series 2023 Bonds to be authorized hereby (as defined herein); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer deems it necessary and advisable to authorize the adoption of this 

Resolution; and 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT THAT: 

 

Section 1.  AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE BONDS.  The bond or bonds of 

Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”) are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered 

in the aggregate principal amount of $14,400,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING 

FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR THE DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 

AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS TO THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE 

REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE BY THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

Section 2.  DESIGNATION OF THE BONDS.  Each bond issued pursuant to this 

Resolution shall be designated: “RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT CONTRACT 

REVENUE BOND (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT), TAXABLE SERIES 2023”, 

and initially there shall be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder a single fully registered bond, 

without interest coupons, payable in installments of principal (the “Initial Bond”), but the Initial 

Bond may be assigned and transferred and/or converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, having serial maturities, and 

in the denomination or denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000, all in the 

manner hereinafter provided.  The term “Bonds” as used in this Resolution shall mean and include 

collectively the Initial Bond and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor, as well as all other 

substitute bonds and replacement bonds issued pursuant hereto, and the term “Bond” shall mean 

any of the Bonds. 

 

Section 3.  INITIAL DATE, DENOMINATION, NUMBER, MATURITIES, INITIAL 

REGISTERED OWNER, AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE INITIAL BOND.  

 

(a) The Initial Bond is hereby authorized to be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder as 

a single fully registered Bond, without interest coupons, dated August 1, 2023, in the denomination 

and aggregate principal amount of $14,400,000 numbered TR-1, payable in annual installments of 

principal to the initial registered owner thereof, to-wit:  Texas Water Development Board, or to 

the registered assignee or assignees of said Bond or any portion or portions thereof (in each case, 

the “registered owner”), with the annual installments of principal of the Initial Bond to be payable 

on the dates, respectively, and in the principal amounts, respectively, stated in the FORM OF 

INITIAL BOND set forth in this Resolution. 

 

32



 

3 

(b) The Initial Bond (i) may and shall be prepaid or redeemed prior to the respective 

scheduled due dates of installments of principal thereof, (ii) may be assigned and transferred, (iii) 

may be converted and exchanged for other Bonds, (iv) shall have the characteristics, and (v) shall 

be signed and sealed, and the principal of and interest on the Initial Bond shall be payable, all as 

provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the FORM OF INITIAL BOND set forth in 

this Resolution. 

 

Section 4.  INTEREST.  The unpaid principal balance of the Initial Bond shall bear interest 

from the Issuance Date to the respective scheduled due dates, or to the respective dates of 

prepayment or redemption, of the installments of principal of the Initial Bond, and said interest 

shall be payable, all in the manner provided and at the rates and on the dates stated in the FORM 

OF INITIAL BOND set forth in this Resolution. 

 

Section 5.  FORM OF INITIAL BOND.  The form of the Initial Bond, including the form 

of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be 

endorsed on the Initial Bond, shall be substantially as follows: 

 

 FORM OF INITIAL BOND 

 

NO. TR-1 $14,400,000 

 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

 STATE OF TEXAS 

 RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

  CONTRACT REVENUE BOND 

 (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT) 

 TAXABLE SERIES 2023 

 

Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State 

of Texas, hereby promises to pay to the TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD, or to the 

registered assignee or assignees of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof (in each case, the 

“registered owner”) the aggregate principal amount of $14,400,000 (FOURTEEN MILLION 

FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS) in annual installments of principal 

due and payable on October 15 in each of the years, and to pay interest, calculated on the basis of 

a 360-day year  composed of twelve 30-day months, from the date of delivery of the Bonds (which 

date appears in the Delivery Certificate endorsed on this Bond), on the balance of each such 

installment of principal, respectively, from time to time remaining unpaid, in the respective 

principal amounts and at the rates per annum, as set forth in the following schedule: 
 

Year of 

Maturity 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 

 Year of 

Maturity 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 

2023    2037   

2023    2038   

2024    2039   

2025    2040   

2026    2041   

2027    2042   

2028    2043   

33



 

4 

2029    2044   

2030    2045   

2031    2046   

2032    2047   

2033    2048   

2034    2049   

2035    2050   

2036    2051   

 

with said interest being payable on October 15, 2024 and semiannually on each April 15 and 

October 15 thereafter while this Bond or any portion hereof is outstanding and unpaid. 

 

THE INSTALLMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF AND THE INTEREST ON this Bond are 

payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  

The installments of principal and the interest on this Bond are payable to the registered owner 

hereof through the services of BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas, as paying agent/registrar (the “Paying 

Agent/Registrar”) for this Bond.  Payment of all principal of and interest on this Bond shall be 

made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner hereof on each principal and/or 

interest payment date by check dated as of such date, drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and 

payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required by the resolution authorizing the issuance of this 

Bond (the “Bond Resolution”) to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose 

as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United 

States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such principal and/or interest payment date, to the 

registered owner hereof, at the address of the registered owner, as it appeared at the close of 

business on the last business day of the month next preceding each such date (the “Record Date”) 

on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter described; provided 

that, if the Texas Water Development Board (the “TWDB”) is the registered owner of this Bond, 

at the option of the TWDB and at the expense of the Issuer, such payment shall be made by wire 

transfer pursuant to written directions of the TWDB.  The Issuer covenants with the registered 

owner of this Bond that on or before each principal and/or interest payment date for this Bond it 

will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the “Interest and Redemption Fund” 

created by the Bond Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately 

available funds, of all principal of and interest on this Bond, when due. 

 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the 

Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date 

for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date 

shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

 

THIS BOND has been authorized in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State 

of Texas FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR THE 

DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS TO 

THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE BY 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

34



 

5 

ON OCTOBER 15, 2033, or any date thereafter, the Bonds having stated maturities on and 

after October 15, 2034 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the 

Issuer, with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, and, if less 

than a whole maturity is to be redeemed, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be 

selected by the Paying Agent/Registrar by lot or other customary random method (provided that a 

portion of a Bond may be redeemed only in an integral multiple of $5,000), at a redemption price 

equal the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  During 

any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by a book entry at a securities 

depository for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity and bearing the same 

interest rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and bearing such interest 

rate shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Issuer and the securities 

depository. 

 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof 

prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar 

by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be 

redeemed at its address as it appeared on the 45th day prior to such redemption date; provided,  

however, that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending 

or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the 

redemption of any Bond, and it is hereby specifically provided that the mailing of such notice as 

required above shall be the only notice actually required in connection with or as a prerequisite  to 

the redemption of any Bonds or portions thereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption due 

provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required 

redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  If such written notice of redemption is mailed 

and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Bonds or portions thereof 

which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their 

scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they 

shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive 

the redemption price plus accrued interest from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds 

provided for such payment.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds 

having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or 

denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the Registered Owner, 

and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the 

Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as 

provided in the Bond Resolution. 

 

THIS BOND, to the extent of the unpaid or unredeemed principal balance hereof, or any 

unpaid and unredeemed portion hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, may be assigned by the 

initial registered owner hereof and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Issuer 

kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms 

and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution.  Among other requirements for such transfer, this 

Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, together 

with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment by the initial registered owner of this Bond, or any 

portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees in whose 

name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be transferred and 

35



 

6 

registered.  Any instrument or instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar may be used to evidence the assignment of this Bond or any such portion or 

portions hereof by the initial registered owner hereof.  A new bond or bonds payable to such 

assignee or assignees (which then will be the new registered owner or owners of such new Bond 

or Bonds) or to the initial registered owner as to any portion of this Bond which is not being 

assigned and transferred by the initial registered owner, shall be delivered by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, but 

solely in the form and manner as provided in the next paragraph hereof for the conversion and 

exchange of this Bond or any portion hereof.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be deemed 

and treated by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all 

purposes, including payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such 

payment, and the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the 

contrary. 

 

AS PROVIDED above and in the Bond Resolution, this Bond, to the extent of the unpaid 

or unredeemed principal balance hereof, may be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the assignee or 

assignees duly designated in writing by the initial registered owner hereof, or to the initial 

registered owner as to any portion of this Bond which is not being assigned and transferred by the 

initial registered owner, in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000 

(subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute bond issued in exchange for any 

portion of this Bond shall have a single stated principal maturity date), upon surrender of this Bond 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set 

forth in the Bond Resolution.  If this Bond or any portion hereof is assigned and transferred or 

converted each bond issued in exchange for any portion hereof shall have a single stated principal 

maturity date corresponding to the due date of the installment of principal of this Bond or portion 

hereof for which the substitute bond is being exchanged, and shall bear interest at the rate 

applicable to and borne by such installment of principal or portion thereof.  Such bonds, 

respectively, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the same dates and for the same 

prices as the corresponding installment of principal of this Bond or portion hereof for which they 

are being exchanged.  No such bond shall be payable in installments, but shall have only one stated 

principal maturity date.  AS PROVIDED IN THE BOND RESOLUTION, THIS BOND IN ITS 

PRESENT FORM MAY BE ASSIGNED AND TRANSFERRED OR CONVERTED ONCE 

ONLY, and to one or more assignees, but the bonds issued and delivered in exchange for this Bond 

or any portion hereof may be assigned and transferred, and converted, subsequently, as provided 

in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary 

fees and charges for transferring, converting, and exchanging this Bond or any portion thereof, but 

the one requesting such transfer, conversion, and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental 

charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required 

to make any such assignment, conversion, or exchange (i) during the period commencing with the 

close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next 

following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond or portion thereof 

called for prepayment or redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its prepayment or 

redemption date. 

 

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for this Bond is changed by the Issuer, 

resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that 

36



 

7 

it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will 

cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the registered owner of this Bond. 

 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 

authorized, issued, sold, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to 

be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this 

Bond have been performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a 

special revenue obligation of the Issuer which, together with the Series 2020 Bonds, Series 2022 

Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations which may be issued in the future, are secured by 

and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” as defined in the Bond 

Resolution, consisting primarily of payments to be received by the Issuer from the Member Entities 

under the Water Distribution and Supply Contracts (the “Contracts”), between the Issuer and each 

Member Entity with respect to the design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of 

improvements to the Company Facilities to provide regional water service for use by the Member 

Entities. 

 

THE ISSUER IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 

THIS BOND SOLELY FROM AND TO THE EXTENT OF THE GROSS REVENUES 

DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE ISSUER FROM 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES.  NO OTHER ENTITY, INCLUDING THE STATE OF TEXAS, 

ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN THE ISSUER OR THE 

MEMBER ENTITIES), OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE BODY, IS OBLIGATED, 

DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, TO PAY 

SUCH PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST FROM ANY OTHER SOURCE WHATSOEVER.  THE 

OWNER OF THIS BOND SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEMAND PAYMENT OF 

THIS BOND OUT OF ANY FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION 

(INCLUDING SPECIFICALLY TAXES RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY THE ISSUER) OR 

FROM ANY OTHER FUNDS OF THE ISSUER EXCEPT THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO 

REPRESENTATION IS MADE HEREIN WITH RESPECT TO THE ANTICIPATED 

SUFFICIENCY OF THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO PART OF THE PHYSICAL PROPERTY 

OF THE ISSUER IS ENCUMBERED BY ANY LIEN OR SECURITY INTEREST FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS OF THIS BOND. 

 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond 

Resolution, to issue Additional Parity Obligations payable from and secured by a first lien on and 

pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” on a parity with this Bond. 

 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution with the approval 

of the registered owners of 51% in principal amount of all outstanding bonds secured by and 

payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues”. 

 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this 

Bond or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source 

whatsoever other than specified in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 

acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such 

37



 

8 

terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for 

inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that 

the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between the 

registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual 

or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and countersigned 

with the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Issuer, has 

caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed or placed in facsimile on this Bond, and 

has caused this Bond to be dated as of August 1, 2023. 

 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Secretary, Board of Directors,   President, Board of Directors, 

 

(ISSUER SEAL) 

 

 FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF THE 

 COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS: 

 

 COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE:  REGISTER NO. 

 

I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved by 

the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

Witness my signature and seal this 

 

_______________________________ 

Comptroller of Public Accounts 

     of the State of Texas 

(COMPTROLLER’S SEAL) 

 

 FORM OF DELIVERY CERTIFICATE 

 

 DELIVERY CERTIFICATE 

 

This Bond was delivered to and paid for by the purchaser thereof on _______________. 

 

38



 

9 

 FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

 

 ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

Please Insert Social Security or 

Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

/___________________________________/ 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 

_________________________ to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Date: _____________________ 

 

  ____________________________________ 

 

Signature Guaranteed:   ____________________________________ 

 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon 

the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement 

or any change whatever; and 

 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in 

a Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

 

39



 

10 

Section 6.  ADDITIONAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE BONDS. Registration and 

Transfer.  (a)  The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the principal corporate trust office of 

BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”) books or records of the registration 

and transfer of the Bonds (the “Registration Books”), and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying 

Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such 

transfers and registrations under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and Paying 

Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such transfers and 

registrations as herein provided.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain and record in the 

Registration Books the address of the registered owner of each Bond to which payments with 

respect to the Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the duty of each registered 

owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which payments shall be 

mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has been given.  The 

Issuer shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business hours of the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration 

Books confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any 

other entity.  Registration of each Bond may be transferred in the Registration Books only upon 

presentation and surrender of such Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for transfer of registration 

and cancellation, together with proper written instruments of assignment, in form and with 

guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing (i) the assignment 

of the Bond, or any portion thereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees 

thereof, and (ii) the right of such assignee or assignees to have the Bond or any such portion thereof 

registered in the name of such  assignee or assignees.  Upon the assignment and transfer of any 

Bond or any portion thereof, a new substitute Bond or Bonds shall be issued in conversion and 

exchange therefor in the manner herein provided.  The Initial Bond, to the extent of the unpaid or 

unredeemed principal balance thereof, may be assigned and transferred by the initial registered 

owner thereof once only, and to one or more assignees designated in writing by the initial 

registered owner thereof.  All Bonds issued and delivered in conversion of and exchange for the 

Initial Bond shall be in any denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000 

(subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute Bond shall have a single stated 

principal maturity date), shall be in the form prescribed in the FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

set forth in this Resolution, and shall have the characteristics, and may be assigned, transferred, 

and converted as hereinafter provided.  If the Initial Bond or any portion thereof is assigned and 

transferred or converted the Initial Bond must be surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 

cancellation, and each Bond issued in exchange for any portion of the Initial Bond shall have a 

single stated principal maturity date, and shall not be payable in installments; and each such Bond 

shall have a principal maturity date corresponding to the due date of the installment of principal or 

portion thereof for which the substitute Bond is being exchanged; and each such Bond shall bear 

interest at the single rate applicable to and borne by such installment of principal or portion thereof 

for which it is being exchanged.  If only a portion of the Initial Bond is assigned and transferred, 

there shall be delivered to and registered in the name of the initial registered owner substitute 

Bonds in exchange for the unassigned balance of the Initial Bond in the same manner as if the 

initial registered owner were the assignee thereof.  If any Bond or portion thereof other than the 

Initial Bond is assigned and transferred or converted each Bond issued in exchange therefor shall 

have the same principal maturity date and bear interest at the same rate as the Bond for which it is 

exchanged.  A form of assignment shall be printed or endorsed on each Bond, excepting the Initial 

Bond, which shall be executed by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney or 

representative to evidence an assignment thereof.  Upon surrender of any Bonds or any portion or 

40



 

11 

portions thereof for transfer of registration, an authorized representative of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall make such transfer in the Registration Books, and shall deliver a new fully 

registered substitute Bond or Bonds, having the characteristics herein described, payable to such 

assignee or assignees (which then will be the registered owner or owners of such new Bond or 

Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in case only a portion of a Bond is being assigned and 

transferred, all in conversion of and exchange for said assigned Bond or Bonds or any portion or 

portions thereof, in the same form and manner, and with the same effect, as provided in Section 

6(d), below, for the conversion and exchange of Bonds by any registered owner of a Bond.  The 

Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for making 

such transfer and delivery of a substitute Bond or Bonds, but the one requesting such transfer shall 

pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make transfers of registration of any Bond or any portion 

thereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending 

with the opening of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with 

respect to any Bond or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days 

prior to its redemption date. 

 

(b) Ownership of Bonds.  The entity in whose name any Bond shall be registered in the 

Registration Books at any time shall be deemed and treated as the absolute owner thereof for all 

purposes of this Resolution, whether or not such Bond shall be overdue, and the Issuer and the 

Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary; and payment of, or on 

account of, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any such Bond shall be made only to 

such registered owner.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 

liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

(c) Payment of Bonds and Interest.  The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying 

Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds, 

and to act as its agent to convert and exchange or replace Bonds, all as provided in this Resolution.  

The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of all payments made by the Issuer and the 

Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Bonds, and of all conversions and exchanges of Bonds, 

and all replacements of Bonds, as provided in this Resolution. 

 

(d) Conversion and Exchange or Replacement; Authentication.  Each Bond issued and 

delivered pursuant to this Resolution, to the extent of the unpaid or unredeemed principal balance 

or principal amount thereof, may, upon surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust 

office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly executed by the 

registered owner or the assignee or assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys or 

representatives, with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, may, at 

the option of the registered owner or such assignee or assignees, as appropriate, be converted into 

and exchanged for fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in the form prescribed in the 

FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND set forth in this Resolution, in the denomination of $5,000, or 

any integral multiple of $5,000 (subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute 

Bond shall have a single stated maturity date), as requested in writing by such registered owner or 

such assignee or assignees, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid or unredeemed 

principal balance or principal amount of any Bond or Bonds so surrendered, and payable to the 

appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be.  If the Initial Bond is 

assigned and transferred or converted each substitute Bond issued in exchange for any portion of 

41



 

12 

the Initial Bond shall have a single stated principal maturity date, and shall not be payable in 

installments; and each such Bond shall have a principal maturity date corresponding to the due 

date of the installment of principal or portion thereof for which the substitute Bond is being 

exchanged; and each such Bond shall bear interest at the single rate applicable to and borne by 

such installment of principal or portion thereof for which it is being exchanged.  If a portion of any 

Bond (other than the Initial Bond) shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity as provided 

herein, a substitute Bond or Bonds having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, 

in the denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000 at the request of the 

registered owner, and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will 

be issued to the registered owner upon surrender thereof for cancellation.  If any Bond or portion 

thereof (other than the Initial Bond) is assigned and transferred or converted, each Bond issued in 

exchange therefor shall have the same principal maturity date and bear interest at the same rate as 

the Bond for which it is being exchanged.  Each substitute Bond shall bear a letter and/or number 

to distinguish it from each other Bond.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall convert and exchange 

or replace Bonds as provided herein, and each fully registered bond delivered in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of any Bond or portion thereof as permitted or required by any 

provision of this Resolution shall constitute one of the Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, 

and may again be converted and exchanged or replaced.  It is specifically provided that any Bond 

authenticated in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of another Bond on or prior to the 

first scheduled Record Date for the Initial Bond shall bear interest from the date of the Initial Bond, 

but each substitute Bond so authenticated after such first scheduled Record Date shall bear interest 

from the interest payment date next preceding the date on which such substitute Bond was so 

authenticated, unless such Bond is authenticated after any Record Date but on or before the next 

following interest payment date, in which case it shall bear interest from such next following 

interest payment date; provided, however, that if at the time of delivery of any substitute Bond the 

interest on the Bond for which it is being exchanged is due but has not been paid, then such Bond 

shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full.  THE INITIAL BOND 

issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution is not required to be, and shall not be, 

authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each substitute Bond issued in conversion of 

and exchange for or replacement of any Bond or Bonds issued under this Resolution there shall be 

printed a certificate, in the form substantially as follows: 

 

 “PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond 

Resolution described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which 

originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

BOKF, NA, 

Dallas, Texas, 

                           Paying Agent/Registrar 

 

 

Dated:  __________     _____________________________ 

Authorized Representative” 

42



 

13 

 

An authorized representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such 

Bond, date and manually sign the above Certificate, and no such Bond shall be deemed to be issued 

or outstanding unless such Certificate is so executed.  The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall 

cancel all Bonds surrendered for conversion and exchange or replacement.  No additional 

ordinances, orders, or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer 

or any other body or person so as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange or 

replacement of any Bond or portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the 

printing, execution, and delivery of the substitute Bonds in the manner prescribed herein, and said 

Bonds shall be of type composition printed on paper with lithographed or steel engraved borders 

of customary weight and strength.  Pursuant to Section 1201.067, Texas Government Code, the 

duty of conversion and exchange or replacement of Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon 

the Paying Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of the above Paying Agent/Registrar’s 

Authentication Certificate, the converted and exchanged or replaced Bond shall be valid, 

incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the Initial Bond 

which originally was issued pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the Attorney General, and 

registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.  The Issuer shall pay the Paying 

Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for transferring, converting, and 

exchanging any Bond or any portion thereof, but the one requesting any such transfer, conversion, 

and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto 

as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such conversion and exchange or replacement 

of Bonds or any portion thereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on 

any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next following principal or interest 

payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption prior to 

maturity, within 45 days prior to its redemption date. 

 

(e) In General.  All Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any 

other Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, 

with the principal of and interest on such Bonds to be payable only to the registered owners thereof, 

(ii) may and shall be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) may be transferred and 

assigned, (iv) may be converted and exchanged for other Bonds, (v) shall have the characteristics, 

(vi) shall be signed and sealed, and (vii) the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable, 

all as provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

set forth in this Resolution. 

 

(f) Payment of Fees and Charges.  The Issuer hereby covenants with the registered 

owners of the Bonds that it will (i) pay the standard or customary fees and charges of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar for its services with respect to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds, when due, and (ii) pay the fees and charges of the Paying Agent/Registrar for services with 

respect to the transfer of registration of Bonds, and with respect to the conversion and exchange 

of Bonds solely to the extent above provided in this Resolution. 

 

(g) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer covenants with the registered 

owners of the Bonds that at all times while the Bonds are outstanding the Issuer will provide a 

competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act 

as and perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds under this Resolution, and 

43



 

14 

that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one entity.  The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its 

option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 120 days written notice to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 60 days prior to the next principal or interest payment 

date after such notice.  In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or 

its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as 

such, the Issuer covenants that promptly it will appoint a competent and legally qualified bank, 

trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar under this 

Resolution.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar 

promptly shall transfer and deliver the Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other 

pertinent books and records relating to the Bonds, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar designated 

and appointed by the Issuer.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Issuer promptly 

will cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each registered 

owner of the Bonds, by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which notice also shall give 

the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.  By accepting the position and performing as such, 

each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, 

and a certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

Section 7.  FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BONDS.  The form of all Bonds issued in conversion 

and exchange or replacement of any other Bond or portion thereof, including the form of Paying 

Agent/Registrar’s Certificate to be printed on each of such Bonds, and the Form of Assignment to 

be printed on each of the Bonds, shall be, respectively, substantially as follows, with such 

appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution. 

 

 FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

 

[Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 

Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”) to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, 

exchange, or payment, and any Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such 

other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to 

Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 

TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 

ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 

interest herein. 

 

As provided in the Bond Resolution referred to herein, until the termination of the system 

of book-entry-only transfers through DTC, and notwithstanding any other provision of the Bond 

Resolution to the contrary, this Bond may be transferred, in whole but not in part, only to a nominee 

of DTC, or by a nominee of DTC to DTC or a nominee of DTC, or by DTC or a nominee of DTC 

to any successor securities depository or any nominee thereof.] 

 

NO. ____ UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PRINCIPAL 

 STATE OF TEXAS AMOUNT  

 RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT $___________ 

 CONTRACT REVENUE BOND 

 (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT) 

 TAXABLE SERIES 2023 

 

44



 

15 

MATURITY   

INTEREST RATE      DATE       ISSUANCE DATE CUSIP NO. 

 

_____%      October 15, 20__     ___________, 2023 ________  

 

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above Riverbend Water Resources District (the 

“Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to Cede & 

Co., or to the registered assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “registered owner”) 

the principal amount of ____________________________________________ and to pay interest 

thereon, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months, from the 

Issuance Date specified above, to the maturity date specified above, or the date of redemption prior 

to maturity, at the interest rate per annum specified above; with interest being payable on October 

15, 2024, and semiannually on each April 15 and October 15 thereafter, except that if the date of 

authentication of this Bond is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such principal 

amount shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication, 

unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date (hereinafter defined) but on or before 

the next following interest payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest 

from such next following interest payment date. 

 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Bond are payable in lawful money of the 

United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  The principal of this Bond shall 

be paid to the registered owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or 

upon the date fixed for its redemption prior to maturity, at the principal corporate trust office of 

BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas, as paying agent/registrar (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”) for this 

Bond.  The payment of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the 

registered owner hereof on each interest payment date by check dated as of such interest payment 

date, drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required 

by the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the “Bond Resolution”) to be on deposit 

with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 

sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such 

interest payment date, to the registered owner hereof, at the address of the registered owner, as it 

appeared at the close of business on the last business day of the month next preceding each such 

date (the “Record Date”) on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as 

hereinafter described.  However, notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the payment of such 

interest may be made by any other method acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and requested 

by, and at the risk and expense of, the registered owner hereof; provided, however, for Bonds, the 

registered owner of which is the Texas Water Development Board (the “TWDB”), at the option of 

the TWDB and at the expense of the Issuer, such payment shall be made by wire transfer pursuant 

to written directions of the TWDB.  Any accrued interest due upon the redemption of this Bond 

prior to maturity as provided herein shall be paid to the registered owner at the principal corporate 

trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar upon presentation and surrender of this Bond for 

redemption and payment at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The 

Issuer covenants with the registered owner of this Bond that on or before each principal payment 

date, interest payment date, and accrued interest payment date for this Bond it will make available 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the “Interest and Redemption Fund” created by the Bond 

Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of 

all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due. 

45



 

16 

 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the 

Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date 

for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date 

shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

 

THIS BOND is one of an issue of Bonds initially dated August 1, 2023, authorized in 

accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas in the principal amount of 

$14,400,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR 

THE DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS 

TO THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE 

BY THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

ON OCTOBER 15, 2033, or any date thereafter, the Bonds having stated maturities on and 

after October 15, 2034 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the 

Issuer, with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, in inverse 

order of maturity, and, if less than a whole maturity is to be redeemed, the Bonds or portions 

thereof to be redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent/Registrar by lot or other customary 

random method (provided that a portion of a Bond may be redeemed only in an integral multiple 

of $5,000), at a redemption price equal the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the 

date fixed for redemption.  During any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by 

a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same 

maturity and bearing the same interest rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such 

maturity and bearing such interest rate shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements 

between the Issuer and the securities depository. 

 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof 

prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar 

by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be 

redeemed at its address as it appeared on the 45th day prior to such redemption date; provided, 

however, that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending 

or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the 

redemption of any Bond, and it is hereby specifically provided that the mailing of such notice as 

required above shall be the only notice actually required in connection with or as a prerequisite  to 

the redemption of any Bonds or portions thereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption due 

provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required 

redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  If such written notice of redemption is mailed 

and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Bonds or portions thereof 

which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their 

scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they 

shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive 

the redemption price plus accrued interest from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds 

provided for such payment.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds 

having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or 

46



 

17 

denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the Registered Owner, 

and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the 

Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as 

provided in the Bond Resolution. 

 

THIS BOND OR ANY PORTION OR PORTIONS HEREOF IN ANY INTEGRAL 

MULTIPLE OF $5,000 may be assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books 

of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, 

upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution.  Among other requirements for 

such assignment and transfer, this Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, together with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of 

signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment of this Bond or any 

portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000 to the assignee or assignees in whose 

name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be transferred and 

registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond shall be executed by the 

registered owner or its duly authorized attorney or representative, to evidence the assignment 

hereof.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee or assignees (which then will be the new 

registered owner or owners of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in 

the case of the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the 

Paying Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner 

as provided in the next paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  The 

Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for making 

such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental 

charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required 

to make transfers of registration of this Bond or any portion hereof (i) during the period 

commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of 

business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond 

or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its 

redemption date.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be deemed and treated by the Issuer and 

the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including payment and 

discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer and the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

 

ALL BONDS OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without 

interest coupons, in the denomination of any integral multiple of $5,000.  As provided in the Bond 

Resolution, this Bond, or any unredeemed portion hereof, may, at the request of the registered 

owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the appropriate 

registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity date, and 

bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of 

$5,000 as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the 

case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in 

accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer shall pay 

the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for transferring, converting, 

and exchanging any Bond or any portion thereof, but the one requesting such transfer, conversion, 

and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto 

as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange.  The Paying 

47



 

18 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such conversion and exchange (i) during the 

period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening 

of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any 

Bond or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its 

redemption date. 

 

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the Issuer, 

resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that 

it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will 

cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the registered owners of the Bonds. 

 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 

authorized, issued, sold, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to 

be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this 

Bond have been performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a 

special revenue obligation of the Issuer which, together with the Series 2020 Bonds, Series 2022 

Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations which may be issued in the future, are secured by 

and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” as defined in the Bond 

Resolution, consisting primarily of payments to be received by the Issuer from the Member Entities 

under the Water Distribution and Supply Contracts (the “Contracts”), between the Issuer and each 

Member Entity with respect to the design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of 

improvements to the Company Facilities to provide regional water service for use by the Member 

Entities. 

 

THE ISSUER IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 

THIS BOND SOLELY FROM AND TO THE EXTENT OF THE GROSS REVENUES 

DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE ISSUER FROM 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES.  NO OTHER ENTITY, INCLUDING THE STATE OF TEXAS, 

ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN THE ISSUER OR THE 

MEMBER ENTITIES), OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE BODY, IS OBLIGATED, 

DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, TO PAY 

SUCH PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST FROM ANY OTHER SOURCE WHATSOEVER.  THE 

OWNER OF THIS BOND SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEMAND PAYMENT OF 

THIS BOND OUT OF ANY FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION 

(INCLUDING SPECIFICALLY TAXES RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY THE ISSUER) OR 

FROM ANY OTHER FUNDS OF THE ISSUER EXCEPT THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO 

REPRESENTATION IS MADE HEREIN WITH RESPECT TO THE ANTICIPATED 

SUFFICIENCY OF THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO PART OF THE PHYSICAL PROPERTY 

OF THE ISSUER IS ENCUMBERED BY ANY LIEN OR SECURITY INTEREST FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS OF THIS BOND. 

 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond 

Resolution, to issue Additional Parity Obligations payable from and secured by a first lien on and 

pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” on a parity with this Bond and series of which it is a part. 

 

48



 

19 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution with the approval 

of the registered owners of 51% in principal amount of all outstanding bonds secured by and 

payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues”. 

 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this 

Bond or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source 

whatsoever other than specified in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 

acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such 

terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for 

inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that 

the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between each 

registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual 

or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and attested and 

countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Directors of 

the Issuer, and has caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, 

on this Bond. 

 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                 

Secretary, Board of Directors,   President, Board of Directors 

 

(ISSUER SEAL)  

 

 

 FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

 PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

49



 

20 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond 

Resolution described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which 

originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

_____________________________, 

                          Paying Agent/Registrar 

 

 

 

Dated:  ___________     _____________________________ 

Authorized Representative 

 

 

 FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

 

 ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

Please Insert Social Security or 

Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

/___________________________________/ 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 

_________________________ to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Date: _____________________ 

  ____________________________________ 

 

Signature Guaranteed:  ____________________________________ 

 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon 

the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement 

or any change whatever; and 

 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in 

a Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

 

Section 8.  ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS.  That as used in this Resolution the following 

terms shall have the meanings set forth below, unless the text hereof specifically indicates 

otherwise: 

 

50



 

21 

“Additional Parity Obligations” shall mean the additional parity revenue bonds permitted 

to be authorized in the future by this Resolution, the Series 2020 Bond Resolutions, and the Series 

2022 Bond Resolutions. 

 

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Issuer, being the governing body of the 

Issuer, and it is further resolved that the declarations and covenants of the Issuer contained in this 

Resolution are made by, and for and on behalf of the Board and the Issuer, and are binding upon 

the Board and the Issuer for all purposes. 

 

“Contract” or “Contracts” shall mean each Water Distribution and Supply Contract entered 

into by the Issuer and each of the Member Entities. 

 

“Gross Revenues” shall mean all payments and amounts received by the Issuer pursuant to 

Section 5.02 of the Contract, and all investments, interest, and income from any Fund created 

pursuant to this Resolution. 

 

“Fund” shall mean any fund created by this Resolution. 

 

“Issuer” shall mean Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

“Issuance Date” shall mean the date of delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchaser thereof. 

 

“Outstanding” means, when used with respect to Parity Obligations, as of the date of 

determination, all Parity Obligations theretofore delivered under this Resolution and any resolution 

of the Issuer authorizing other Parity Obligations or Additional Parity Obligations, except: 

 

(1)  Parity Obligations theretofore cancelled and delivered to the Issuer or delivered 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation; 

 

(2)  Parity Obligations deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of Section 20 of this 

Resolution or any comparable section of any resolution authorizing other Parity 

Obligations; 

 

(3)  Parity Obligations upon transfer of or in exchange for and in lieu of which other 

Parity Obligations have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to this Resolution and 

any resolution authorizing other Parity Obligations; and 

 

(4)  Parity Obligations under which the obligations of the Issuer have been released, 

discharged or extinguished in accordance with the terms thereof. 

 

“Parity Obligations” shall mean, collectively, the Series 2020 Bonds, the Series 2022 

Bonds, the Bonds, and any Additional Parity Obligations hereafter issued by the Issuer or 

obligations issued to refund any of the foregoing (as determined within the sole discretion of the 

Issuer’s Board of Directors in accordance with applicable law) if issued in a manner that provides 

that the refunding bonds are payable from and equally and ratably secured by a first lien on and 

pledge of the Pledged Revenues. 

 

51



 

22 

“Pledged Revenues” shall mean: (a)  the payments to be made to the Issuer by the Member 

Entities pursuant to Section 3(a)(1) of the Contracts and (b) any additional revenues, income, 

receipts, or other resources, including, without limitation, any grants, donations, or income 

received or to be received from the United States Government, or any other public or private 

source, whether pursuant to an agreement or otherwise, which in the future may, at the option of 

the Issuer, be pledged to the payment of the Parity Obligations. 

 

“Project” shall mean the Planned Improvements as defined in the Contract, being the 

regional water system described in the Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan, dated July 25, 

2018, including without limitation a new surface water treatment plant with an initial treatment 

capacity of 25 million gallons per day, a new raw water intake at Wright Patman Lake, water 

transmission lines, storage facilities, pumps, and related infrastructure for the distribution and sale 

of treated water, raw water, and reuse water. 

 

“Series 2020 Bonds” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles hereof. 

 

“Series 2020 Bond Resolutions” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles 

hereof. 

 

“Series 2022 Bonds” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles hereof. 

 

“Series 2022 Bond Resolutions” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles 

hereof. 

 

“Series 2023 Bonds” or “Bonds” shall mean, collectively the Initial Bond as described and 

defined in Section 1 of this Resolution, and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor as well as all 

other substitute and replacement bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution. 

 

“Series 2023 Resolution” or “Resolution” shall mean this resolution authorizing the Bonds. 

 

“TWDB” shall mean the Texas Water Development Board. 

 

“year” shall mean the 12 month period beginning each September 1, or such other 12 month 

period hereafter established by the Issuer as a fiscal year for the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 9.  PLEDGE.  (a)  The Bonds, and the interest thereon, are and shall be secured by 

and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues, and the Pledged Revenues 

are further pledged to the establishment and maintenance of the Interest and Redemption Fund as 

provided in this Resolution.  It is specifically recognized that the Member Cities are required to 

make payments, from the gross revenues of their respective waterworks and sewer systems, to the 

Issuer pursuant to the Contracts sufficient to enable the Issuer to make all deposits and payments 

provided for herein, and that the Bonds, and the interest thereon, are and shall be payable from and 

secured by a first lien on and pledge of all of the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Revenues are 

further pledged irrevocably to the establishment and maintenance of the Funds hereinafter 

described. 

 

52



 

23 

(b) The Bonds and the interest thereon constitute and shall be special obligations of the 

Issuer payable solely from the Pledged Revenues, and the owner or owners thereof shall never 

have the right to demand payment thereof out of funds raised or to be raised from taxation.  The 

Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

Section 10.  REVENUE FUND.  The Issuer previously created and established pursuant to 

the Series 2020 Bond Resolutions, and there shall be maintained at an official depository of the 

Issuer (which must be a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation) a separate fund to 

be entitled the “Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

System Project) Revenue Fund” (hereafter called the “Revenue Fund”).  All Pledged Revenues 

shall be credited to the Revenue Fund immediately upon receipt and shall be deposited from the 

Revenue Fund in the manner and amounts hereinafter provided. 

 

Section 11.  INTEREST AND REDEMPTION FUND.  For the sole purpose of paying the 

principal of and interest on all outstanding Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations, as the 

same come due, the Issuer previously created and established pursuant to the Series 2020 Bond 

Resolutions and shall be maintained with the Paying Agent/Registrar, a separate fund to be entitled 

the “Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System 

Project) Interest and Redemption Fund” (hereinafter called the “Interest and Redemption Fund”).  

The Pledged Revenues shall be deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund from the Revenue 

Fund when and as required by this Resolution. 

 

Section 12. [RESERVED]. 

 

Section 13.  INVESTMENTS.  Money in every Fund required to be maintained by this 

Resolution may, at the option of the Issuer, be invested as provided in the Public Funds Investment 

Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, for the investment of funds of the entities described 

therein; provided that all such deposits and investments shall be made in such manner that the 

money required to be expended from any Fund will be available at the proper time or times when 

expected to be needed.  Interest and income derived from such deposits and investments shall be 

credited to the Fund from which the deposit or investment was made and shall be used only for the 

purpose or purposes for which such Fund is required or permitted to be used.  Such investments 

shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any default in connection with the Bonds. 

 

Section 14.  FUNDS SECURED.  All Funds required to be maintained by this Resolution 

shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent by law, including particularly, the Public 

Funds Collateral Act, Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code, and such Funds shall be used only 

for the purposes and in the manner permitted or required by this Resolution. 

 

Section 15.  DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS.  (a)  Immediately after the delivery of 

the Bonds the Issuer shall deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, from the 

proceeds received from the sale and delivery of the Bonds, all accrued interest, to be used to pay 

part of the interest coming due on the Bonds. 

 

(b) The Issuer shall transfer from the Pledged Revenues credited to the Revenue Fund 

and deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund the amounts, at the times, as follows: 

 

53



 

24 

(1) on or before the fifth day prior to each interest payment date for the Bonds, 

such amounts as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, then on hand in the 

Interest and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay the interest scheduled 

to accrue and come due on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations on such next 

succeeding interest payment date; 

 

(2) on or before the fifth day prior to each principal payment date for the Bonds, 

such amounts as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, then on hand in the 

Interest and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay the principal 

scheduled to mature and come due, on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations on 

such next succeeding principal payment date; 

 

(3) on or before the fifth day prior to any optional redemption date set by the 

Issuer for any Bonds, such amount as will be sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if 

any, and interest on the Bonds scheduled to be redeemed on such optional redemption date; 

and 

 

(4) any amounts required to be deposited therein pursuant to Sections 30 and 

31 of this Resolution. 

 

Section 16.  DEFICIENCIES.  If on any occasion there shall not be sufficient Pledged 

Revenues to make the required deposits into the Interest and Redemption Fund, then such 

deficiency shall be made up as soon as possible from the next available Pledged Revenues, or from 

any other sources available for such purpose. 

 

Section 17.  EXCESS PLEDGED REVENUES.  Subject to making the required deposits 

to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, when and as required by this Resolution, or any 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of Additional Parity Obligations, the excess Pledged Revenues 

may be used by the Issuer for any other lawful purpose. 

 

Section 18.  CONSTRUCTION FUND.  There shall be established a separate fund to be 

known as the “Taxable Series 2023 Bond Construction Fund” (the “Construction Fund”) with the 

Issuer’s depository bank and upon the delivery of the Bonds, and subject to making the deposits 

required by Sections 12 and 15(a) hereof, the remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited 

into the Construction Fund.  Subject to any escrow or trust and agency fund requirements imposed 

by the TWDB pursuant to Section 31 hereof, money in the Construction Fund shall be subject to 

disbursements by the Issuer for payment of all costs incurred in carrying out the purpose for which 

the Bonds are issued. 

 

Section 19.  PAYMENT OF BONDS.  On or before the fourteenth calendar day of each 

April and of each October hereafter while any of the Bonds or Additional Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer shall make available to the paying agents therefor, out of the 

Interest and Redemption Fund, if necessary, money sufficient to pay such interest on and such 

principal of the Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations as will accrue or mature on the April 15 

or October 15 immediately following. 

 

54



 

25 

Section 20.  FINAL DEPOSITS.  (a) At such times as the aggregate amount of money and 

investments in the Interest and Redemption Fund are at least equal in market value to (1) the 

aggregate principal amount of all unpaid (unmatured and matured) outstanding Bonds and 

Additional Parity Obligations, plus (2) the aggregate amount of all unpaid interest, including all 

unpaid (unmatured and matured) outstanding interest coupons, appertaining to such Bonds and 

Additional Parity Obligations, no further deposits need be made into the Interest and Redemption 

Fund.  In determining the amount of such Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations, and unpaid 

interest appertaining thereto, outstanding at any time, there shall be subtracted and excluded the 

amount of any such Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations, and unpaid interest appertaining 

thereto, which shall have been duly called for redemption and for which funds shall have been 

deposited with the paying agents therefor sufficient for such redemption. 

 

(b) Any money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar in trust for the payment of 

the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on any Bond and remaining unclaimed 

for four years after such principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on such Bond has 

become due and payable shall, subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas, be 

paid to the Issuer; provided, however, that before the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to 

make any such repayment, the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the expense of the Issuer cause to 

be published at least once, in a financial newspaper, journal, or publication of general circulation 

in The City of New York, New York, or in the State of Texas, a notice that such money remains 

unclaimed and that, after a date specified therein, which shall not be less than 30 days from the 

date of such publication, any unclaimed balance of such money then remaining will be repaid to 

the Issuer.  After the payment of such unclaimed moneys to the Issuer, the owner of such Bond 

shall thereafter look only to the Issuer for the payment thereof, and all liability of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar with respect to such money shall thereupon cease. 

 

Section 21.  ADDITIONAL PARITY OBLIGATIONS.  (a)  The Issuer shall have the right 

and power at any time and from time to time, and in one or more Series or issues, to authorize, 

issue, and deliver additional parity revenue bonds or notes (herein called “Additional Parity 

Obligations”), in any amounts, for any lawful purpose of or relating to the Project and the Planned 

Improvements (as such term is defined in the Contracts), as permitted by the Contracts, including 

the refunding of any Parity Obligation.  Such Additional Parity Obligations, if and when 

authorized, issued, and delivered in accordance with this Resolution, shall be secured by and made 

payable equally and ratably on a parity with the Bonds and all other Outstanding Parity 

Obligations, from a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues; provided, however, that for 

so long as the TWDB is the holder of Outstanding Parity Obligations, such Pledged Revenues may 

not be pledged to the payment of any Additional Parity Obligations secured by a pledge of the 

same Pledge Revenues unless the Issuer demonstrates to the TWDB Executive Administrator=s 

satisfaction that the Pledged Revenues will be sufficient for the repayment of all then Outstanding 

Parity Obligations and the proposed Additional Parity Obligations. 

 

(b) The Interest and Redemption Fund established by Series 2020 Bond Resolutions 

shall secure and be used to pay all Additional Parity Obligations as well as the Bonds and all other 

Outstanding Parity Obligations.  However, each Resolution under which Additional Parity 

Obligations are issued shall provide and require that, in addition to the amounts required by the 

provisions of this Resolution and the provisions of any other Resolution or Resolutions authorizing 

Additional Parity Obligations to be deposited to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, 

55



 

26 

the Issuer shall deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund at least such amounts as 

are required for the payment of all principal of and interest on said Additional Parity Obligations 

then being issued, as the same come due. 

 

(c) The principal of all Additional Parity Obligations must be scheduled to be paid or 

mature on October 15 of the years in which such principal is scheduled to be paid or mature; and 

all interest thereon must be payable on April 15 and October 15. 

 

(d) The Issuer further reserves the right to issue bonds, notes, or other obligations of 

inferior liens and bonds, notes, or other obligations payable from sources other than Pledged 

Revenues. 

 

Section 22.  FURTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL PARITY 

OBLIGATIONS.  Additional Parity Obligations shall be issued only in accordance with this 

Resolution, but notwithstanding any provisions of this Resolution to the contrary, without the 

consent of owners of at least 51% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding, no 

installment or series of Additional Parity Obligations shall be issued unless: 

 

(a) a certificate is executed by the President or the chief administrative officer 

of the Issuer to the effect that no default exists in connection with any of the covenants or 

requirements of the Resolution or resolutions authorizing the issuance of all then 

outstanding Parity Obligations and that the Interest and Redemption Fund contains the 

amount then required to be on deposit therein; 

 

(b) an opinion of Bond Counsel is rendered to the effect that (i) such Additional 

Parity Obligations are valid and binding obligations of the Issuer and enforceable in 

accordance with their terms subject to governmental immunity, bankruptcy, insolvency, 

reorganization, moratorium and other laws affecting creditors’ rights or remedies generally 

and to the extent that certain equitable remedies, including specific performance may not 

be available; (ii) such Additional Parity Obligations have been duly and validly authorized 

and issued in accordance with law; and 

 

(c) the Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Additional Parity 

Obligations shall provide for the payment of principal and interest on such Additional 

Parity Obligations. 

 

Section 23.  GENERAL COVENANTS.  The Issuer further covenants and agrees that: 

 

(a) PERFORMANCE.  It will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, 

undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Resolution and each resolution 

authorizing the issuance of Additional Parity Obligations, and in each and every Bond and 

Outstanding Parity Obligation; that it will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and 

interest on every Bond and Outstanding Parity Obligation, on the dates and in the places and 

manner prescribed in such resolutions and Bonds or Outstanding Parity Obligations; and that it 

will, at the times and in the manner prescribed, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts 

required to be deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund; and any holder of the Bonds or 

Outstanding Parity Obligations may require the Issuer, its Board, and its officials and employees, 

56



 

27 

to carry out, respect, or enforce the covenants and obligations of this Resolution or any resolution 

authorizing the issuance of other Parity Obligations, by all legal and equitable means, including 

specifically, but without limitation, the use and filing of mandamus proceedings, in any court of 

competent jurisdiction, against the Issuer, its Board, and its officials and employees. 

 

(b) ISSUER’S LEGAL AUTHORITY.  The Issuer is a duly created and existing 

conservation and reclamation district of the State of Texas pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of 

the Texas Constitution and the Issuer Act, and is duly authorized under the laws of the State of 

Texas to create and issue the Bonds; that all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the 

Bonds has been duly and effectively taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the holders and 

owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable special obligations of the Issuer in accordance 

with their terms. 

 

(c) OPERATION OF PROJECT.  While the Bonds or any Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid it will cause the Project to be continuously and efficiently operated and 

maintained in good condition, repair, and working order in accordance with the Contracts. 

 

(d) FURTHER ENCUMBRANCE.  While the Bonds or any Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer shall not additionally encumber the Pledged Revenues in any 

manner, except as permitted in this Resolution in connection with Additional Parity Obligations, 

unless said encumbrance is made junior and subordinate in all respects to the liens, pledges, 

covenants, and agreements of this Resolution and any resolution authorizing the issuance of 

Outstanding Parity Obligations; but the right of the Issuer and the Board to issue revenue bonds 

payable from a subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues is specifically recognized and retained. 

 

(e) RECORDS.  Proper books of record and account will be kept in which full, true, 

and correct entries will be made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the Project, 

the Pledged Revenues, and all Funds described in this Resolution; and all books, documents, and 

vouchers relating thereto shall at all reasonable times be made available for inspection upon request 

of any bondholder. 

 

(f) AUDITS.  The Issuer covenants that within 120 days after the close of each Fiscal 

Year, it shall have had made, and will file with the TWDB, so long as its owns any Bonds, and the 

rating agencies which have issued a rating on the Bonds, in such quantity as each may require, an 

audited financial statement for itself prepared in accordance with the requirements of Section 

49.192, Texas Water Code, as amended. 

 

Copies of such audit shall be filed in the office of the Issuer and shall be open for inspection 

by any interested person during normal office hours.  The Issuer shall furnish a copy of such audit 

reports any owner of Bonds upon request. 

 

(g) GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES.  It will comply with all of the terms and 

conditions of any and all agreements applicable to the Project and the Bonds or Outstanding Parity 

Obligations entered into between the Issuer and any governmental agency, and the Issuer will take 

all action necessary to enforce said terms and conditions; and the Issuer will obtain and keep in 

full force and effect all franchises, permits, and other requirements necessary with respect to the 

acquisition, construction, operation, and maintenance of the Project. 

57



 

28 

 

(h) CONTRACTS WITH MEMBER ENTITIES.  It will comply with the terms and 

conditions of the Contracts and will cause the Member Entities to comply with all of its obligations 

thereunder, particularly the obligation to fix and collect rates for services sufficient to pay the 

Bonds and any other Outstanding Parity Obligations, by all lawful means. 

 

(i) INSPECTION.  Any registered owner of any Bonds shall have the right at all 

reasonable times to inspect all financial records, accounts, audits, and data of the Issuer relating to 

the Project.  In addition, so long as the TWDB or other state agency holds any of the Bonds, the 

Issuer shall give any duly authorized agent of such agency access to and right to copy any records, 

reports and files of the Issuer pertaining to the Project, and shall prepare and furnish to such agency 

such reports on the physical condition and finances of the Project as such agency shall request. 

 

(j) BUDGET.  It will prepare, adopt, and place into effect an annual budget (the 

“Annual Budget”) for operation and maintenance of the Planned Improvements (as defined in the 

Contracts) for each fiscal year, including in each Annual Budget such items as are customarily and 

reasonably contained in a regional water system budget under generally accepted accounting 

procedures.  The Issuer shall, at least thirty days subsequent to adopting and placing into effect 

each Annual Budget, furnish, without cost, a copy of same to the TWDB, so long as it owns any 

Bonds, and to any owner of 25% or more in aggregate principal amount of all then Outstanding 

Parity Obligations who may so request. 

 

(k) PERMITS.  It will comply with all of the terms and conditions of any and all 

franchises, permits, and authorizations applicable to or necessary with respect to the Project and 

which have been obtained from any governmental agency; and the Issuer has or will obtain and 

keep in full force and effect all franchises, permits, authorizations, and other requirements 

applicable to or necessary with respect to the acquisition, construction, equipment, operation, and 

maintenance of the Project. 

 

Section 24.  AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION.  (a)  The holders or owners of Parity 

Obligations aggregating 51% in principal amount of the aggregate principal amount of all then 

Outstanding Parity Obligations shall have the right from time to time to approve any amendment 

to this Resolution or any other resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations, which 

may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer, provided, however, that nothing herein 

contained shall permit or be construed to permit the amendment of the terms and conditions in said 

resolutions or in the Parity Obligations so as to: 

 

(1) Make any change in the maturity of the Outstanding Parity Obligations; 

 

(2) Reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Outstanding Parity Obligations; 

 

(3) Reduce the amount of the principal payable on the Outstanding Bonds or Additional 

Parity Obligations; 

 

(4) Modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on the Outstanding Parity 

Obligations, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment; 

 

58



 

29 

(5) Affect the rights of the holders of less than all of the Parity Obligations then 

Outstanding; 

 

(6) Change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of Parity Obligations 

necessary for consent to such amendment. 

 

(b) If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend a resolution under this Section, the 

Issuer shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or 

journal published in the City of Texarkana, Texas, or in the City of Austin, Texas, once during 

each calendar week for at least two successive calendar weeks.  Such notice shall briefly set forth 

the nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal 

office of each Paying Agent for each Series of Parity Obligations for inspection by all holders of 

Parity Obligations.  Such publication is not required, however, if notice in writing is given to each 

holder of Parity Obligations. 

 

(c) Whenever at any time not less than thirty days, and within one year, from the date 

of the first publication of notice or other service of written notice the Issuer shall receive an 

instrument or instruments executed by the holders or owners of at least 51% in aggregate principal 

amount of all Parity Obligations then outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to 

the proposed amendment described in said notice and which specifically consent to and approve 

such amendment in substantially the form of the copy thereof on file as aforesaid, the Issuer may 

adopt the amendatory resolution in substantially the same form. 

 

(d) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this 

Section, the resolution being amended shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with the 

amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the Issuer and all the 

holders or owners of then Outstanding Parity Obligations and all future Additional Parity 

Obligations shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced hereunder, subject in all 

respects to such amendment. 

 

(e) Any consent given by the holder or owner of any Parity Obligation pursuant to the 

provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first 

publication of the notice provided for in this Section, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all 

future holders or owners of the same Parity Obligation during such period.  Such consent may be 

revoked at any time after six months from the date of the first publication of such notice by the 

holder or owner who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice thereof with 

each Paying Agent for each Series of Parity Obligations and the Issuer, but such revocation shall 

not be effective if the holders of 51% in aggregate principal amount of the then Outstanding Parity 

Obligations as in this Section defined have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and 

approved the amendment. 

 

(f) The ownership of all registered Parity Obligations shall be ascertained by the 

registration books pertaining thereto kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer may 

conclusively assume that such holding or ownership continues until written notice to the contrary 

is served upon the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

59



 

30 

Section 25.  DEFEASANCE OF BONDS.  (a) Any Bond and the interest thereon shall be 

deemed to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding (a “Defeased Bond”) within the meaning of 

this Resolution, except to the extent provided in subsection (d) of this Section 25, when payment 

of the principal of such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by 

reason of maturity, upon redemption, or otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be 

made in accordance with the terms thereof (including the giving of any required notice of 

redemption), or (ii) shall have been provided for on or before such due date by irrevocably 

depositing with or making available to the Paying Agent/Registrar for such payment (1) lawful 

money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment or (2) Defeasance 

Securities which mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will 

insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, and 

when proper arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 

payment of its services until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable.  At such time 

as a Bond shall be deemed to be a Defeased Bond hereunder, as aforesaid, such Bond and the 

interest thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of the 

Pledged Revenues pledged as provided in this Resolution, and such principal and interest shall be 

payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities. 

 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), the Issuer expressly reserves the 

right, pursuant to Section 1207.033(c), Texas Government Code, to later call a Defeased Bond for 

redemption in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

(c) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written 

direction of the Issuer also be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times 

as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Defeasance Securities received by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon with 

respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Issuer, or deposited 

as directed in writing by the Issuer. 

 

(d) The term “Defeasance Securities” as used in this Section, means any securities and 

obligations now or hereafter authorized by State of Texas law that are eligible to refund, retire or 

otherwise discharge obligations such as the Bonds. 

 

(e) Until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable, the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Bonds the 

same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide 

and pay for such services as required by this Resolution. 

 

(f) In the event that the Issuer elects to defease less than all of the principal amount of 

Bonds of a maturity, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select such amount of Bonds by such random 

method as it deems fair and appropriate. 

 

(g) So long as the TWDB is the registered owner of any of the Bonds, the Issuer shall 

provide written notice to the TWDB of a defeasance of the Bonds pursuant to subsection (a) of 

this Section. 

 

60



 

31 

Section 26.  DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED BONDS.  

(a)  Replacement Bonds.  In the event any outstanding Bonds or Bond authorized by this 

Resolution is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause 

to be printed, executed, and delivered, a new bond of the same principal amount, maturity, and 

interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in replacement for such 

Bond in the manner hereinafter provided. 

 

(b) Application for Replacement Bonds.  Application for replacement of damaged, 

mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bonds shall be made by the registered owner thereof to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Bond, the registered owner 

applying for a replacement bond shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar such 

security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or 

damage with respect thereto.  Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Bond, the 

registered owner shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar evidence to their 

satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction of such Bond, as the case may be.  In every case of 

damage or mutilation of a Bond, the registered owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar 

for cancellation the Bond so damaged or mutilated. 

 

(c) No Default Occurred.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in 

the event any such Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing 

in the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bond, the Issuer 

may authorize the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged 

or mutilated Bond) instead of issuing a replacement Bond, provided security or indemnity is 

furnished as above provided in this Section. 

 

(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Bonds.  Prior to the issuance of any replacement 

bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the registered owner of such Bond with all legal, 

printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  Every replacement bond issued pursuant to 

the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Bond is lost, stolen, or destroyed shall 

constitute a contractual obligation of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond 

shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of 

this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued under this 

Resolution. 

 

(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Bonds.  In accordance with Section 1201.067, 

Texas Government Code, this Section of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance 

of any such replacement bond without necessity of further action by the governing body of the 

Issuer or any other body or person, and the duty of the replacement of such bonds is hereby 

authorized and imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 

authenticate and deliver such Bonds in the form and manner and with the effect, as provided in 

Section 6(d) of this Resolution for Bonds issued in conversion and exchange for other Bonds. 

 

Section 27.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF INITIAL BOND; 

BOND COUNSEL’S OPINION, CUSIP NUMBERS, INSURANCE, AND PREAMBLE.  The 

General Manager of the Issuer is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond issued 

hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Initial Bond pending its 

delivery and its investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney General of the State of 

61



 

32 

Texas, and its registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.  Upon 

registration of the Initial Bond said Comptroller of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in 

writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate 

on the Initial Bond, and the seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on 

the Initial Bond.  The approving legal opinion of the Issuer’s Bond Counsel and the assigned 

CUSIP numbers may, at the option of the Issuer, be printed on the Initial Bond or on any Bonds 

issued and delivered in conversion of and exchange or replacement of any Bond, but neither shall 

have any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the registered 

owners of the Bonds.  If insurance is obtained on any of the Bonds, the Initial Bond and all the 

Bonds shall bear an appropriate legend concerning insurance as provided by the insurer.  The 

preamble to this Resolution is hereby adopted and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 28.  INTEREST EARNINGS ON BOND PROCEEDS.  Interest earnings derived 

from the investment of proceeds from the sale of the Initial Bond shall be used along with other 

bond proceeds for the acquisition, by purchase and construction, of the Project in accordance with 

the Contracts; provided that after completion of the Project, if any of such interest earnings remain 

on hand, such interest earnings along with any surplus bond proceeds shall be deposited in the 

Interest and Sinking Fund. 

 

Section 29. ESCROW AGREEMENT AND ESCROW ACCOUNT.  (a)  The Escrow 

Agreement relating to the Bonds between the Issuer and the escrow agent named therein (the 

“Escrow Agent”) substantially in the form and content attached hereto as Exhibit A, specifying 

the duties and responsibilities of the Issuer and the Escrow Agent, is hereby approved and the 

President of the Board is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Escrow Agreement on 

behalf of the Issuer.  The Escrow Agent named in the Escrow Agreement is hereby appointed as 

the Escrow Agent pursuant to such Escrow Agreement. 

 

(b) On the closing date, the Issuer shall cause the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 

to be deposited into the Escrow Account or, if agreed to by the TWDB, all or a portion of the 

proceeds of the Bonds may be deposited into the Construction Fund or as otherwise directed by 

the Issuer. 

 

(c) Except as provided in Section 36 moneys disbursed from the Escrow Account 

established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement shall be applied only for the projects for which the 

Bonds are issued. 

 

(d) The security for, and the investment of, funds on deposit in the Escrow Account 

shall be governed by the provisions of the Escrow Agreement. 

 

62



 

33 

Section 30.  SALE OF INITIAL BOND.  The Bonds hereby sold and shall be delivered to 

the Texas Water Development Board for cash for the principal amount thereof.  In accordance with 

its Resolution No. 20-075, the Texas Water Development Board will purchase the Bonds, with an 

amount approved by the Texas Water Development Board to be deposited to the Construction 

Fund authorized by Section 18 hereof (the “Construction Fund”) upon initial delivery of the Bonds, 

and the balance of the proceeds to be deposited to the Escrow Account authorized by Section 29 

hereof until authorized for transfer to the Construction Fund by the Texas Water Development 

Board.  The officers of the Issuer are authorized to do any and all things necessary in connection 

with the issuance of the Bonds, and are authorized to execute and deliver such certificates as are 

necessary or appropriate in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  It is hereby officially found, 

determined, and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably 

obtainable.  The Bonds shall initially be registered in the name of the TWDB or its designee. 

 

Section 31.  DTC REGISTRATION.  The Bonds initially shall be issued and delivered in 

such manner that no physical distribution of the Bonds will be made to the public, and the 

Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, initially will act as depository for the 

Bonds.  DTC has represented that it is a limited purpose trust company incorporated under the 

laws of the State of New York, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” 

within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” 

registered under Section 17A of the federal Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the 

Issuer accepts, but in no way verifies, such representations.  The Initial Bond authorized by this 

Resolution shall be delivered to and registered in the name of the TWDB.  However, it is a 

condition of delivery and sale that the TWDB, immediately after such delivery, shall cause the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, as provided for in this Resolution, to cancel said Initial Bond and deliver 

in exchange therefor a substitute Bond for each maturity of such Initial Bond, with each such 

substitute Bond to be registered in the name of CEDE & CO., the nominee of DTC, and it shall be 

the duty of the Paying Agent/Registrar to take such action.  It is expected that DTC will hold the 

Bonds on behalf of the TWDB and/or the DTC Participants, as defined and described in the 

Official Statement referred to and approved in Section 29 hereof (the “DTC Participants”).  So 

long as each Bond is registered in the name of CEDE & CO., the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 

treat and deal with DTC in all respects the same as if it were the actual and beneficial owner 

thereof.  It is expected that DTC will maintain a book entry system which will identify beneficial 

ownership of the Bonds by DTC Participants in integral amounts of $5,000, with transfers of 

ownership being effected on the records of DTC and the DTC Participants pursuant to rules and 

regulations established by them, and that the substitute Bonds initially deposited with DTC shall 

be immobilized and not be further exchanged for substitute Bonds except as hereinafter provided.  

The Issuer is not responsible or liable for any functions of DTC, will not be responsible for paying 

any fees or charges with respect to its services, will not be responsible or liable for maintaining, 

supervising, or reviewing the records of DTC or the DTC Participants, or protecting any interests 

or rights of the beneficial owners of the Bonds.  It shall be the duty of the TWDB and the DTC 

Participants to make all arrangements with DTC to establish this book-entry system, the beneficial 

ownership of the Bonds, and the method of paying the fees and charges of DTC.  The Issuer does 

not represent, nor does it in any way covenant that the initial book-entry system established with 

DTC will be maintained in the future.  The Issuer reserves the right and option at any time in the 

future, in its sole discretion, to terminate the DTC (CEDE & CO.) book-entry only registration 

requirement described above, and to permit the Bonds to be registered in the name of any owner.  

If the Issuer exercises its right and option to terminate such requirement, it shall give written notice 

63



 

34 

of such termination to the Paying Agent/ Registrar and to DTC, and thereafter the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall, upon presentation and proper request, register any Bond in any name as 

provided for in this Resolution.  Notwithstanding the initial establishment of the foregoing book-

entry system with DTC, if for any reason any of the originally delivered substitute Bonds is duly 

filed with the Paying Agent/Registrar with proper request for transfer and substitution, as provided 

for in this Resolution, substitute Bonds will be duly delivered as provided in this Resolution, and 

there will be no assurance or representation that any book-entry system will be maintained for such 

Bonds. 

 

Section 32.   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.  (a).Definitions.  As used 

in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms below: 

 

 “Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument 

entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or 

planned debt obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; 

provided that “financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in 

the Rule) has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

 

 “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any successor to its 

functions under the Rule. 

 

 “Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

 

 “SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 

 (b) Annual Reports.  The Issuer shall provide annually to the MSRB, within 

twelve months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2023, financial information and 

operating data with respect to the Issuer to the extent that such information is customarily prepared 

by the Issuer and is publicly available.  Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) 

prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in the notes to the financial 

statements filed with the Texas Water Development Board as part of the Issuer’s application to the 

Texas Water Development Board, or such other accounting principles as the Issuer may be 

required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and (2) audited, if the 

Issuer commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during 

which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within such 

period, then the Issuer shall provide unaudited financial information that is available to the Issuer 

by the required time and will provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to 

the MSRB, when and if the audit report on such statements become available.  Such information 

shall be transmitted electronically to the MSRB, in such format and accompanied by such 

identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

 

If the Issuer changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 

of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Issuer otherwise would be required 

to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.  The financial 

information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in 

one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document (including an 

64



 

35 

official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the MSRB) that theretofore 

has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the SEC. 

 

(c) Notice of Certain Events.  (i) The Issuer shall file notice of any of the following 

events with respect to the Bonds with the MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 business 

days after occurrence of the event: 

 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) Non-payment related defaults if material; 

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-

TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of 

the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(7) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds if material; 

(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(9) Defeasances; 

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds if 

material; 

(11) Rating changes; 

(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Issuer; 

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer 

or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the 

ordinary course of business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake 

such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such 

actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 

if material; 

(15) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to 

covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 

Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect security holders, if material; 

and 

(16) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which 

reflect financial difficulties. 

 

For these purposes, (i) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (12) is 

considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 

or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 

other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 

jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has 

been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers of the Issuer in 

possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 

entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 

governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 

65



 

36 

business of the Issuer., and (ii) the Issuer intends the words used in the immediately preceding 

paragraphs (15) and (16) and the definition of Financial Obligation in this Section to have the same 

meanings as when they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, dated 

August 20, 2018. 

 

The Issuer shall file notice with the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Issuer 

to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Subsection (b) of this Section 

by the time required by such Subsection. 

 

(d)  Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.  (i)  The Issuer shall be obligated to 

observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, 

the Issuer remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, 

except that the Issuer in any event will give the notice required by Subsection (a) hereof of any 

Bond calls and defeasance that cause the Issuer to no longer be such an “obligated person”. 

 

(ii)  The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the registered owners 

and beneficial owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall 

give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other 

person.  The Issuer undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, 

financial statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this 

Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may be 

relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Issuer’s financial results, condition, 

or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in accordance with 

this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The Issuer does not make 

any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision 

to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

 

(iii)  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE ISSUER BE LIABLE TO 

THE REGISTERED OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY 

OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN 

WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE ISSUER, WHETHER 

NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT 

SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH 

PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 

BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 

PERFORMANCE. 

 

(iv)  No default by the Issuer in observing or performing its obligations under this 

Section shall comprise a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other 

provision of this Ordinance.  Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, 

waive, or otherwise limit the duties of the Issuer under federal and state securities laws. 

 

(v)  The provisions of this Section may be amended by the Issuer from time to time 

to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change 

in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Issuer, but 

only if (1) the provisions of this Section, as so amended, would have permitted an 

underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance 

66



 

37 

with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule since 

such offering as well as such changed circumstances and (2) either (a) the registered 

owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required by any 

other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an amendment) of the outstanding 

Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is unaffiliated with the Issuer (such 

as nationally recognized bond counsel) determined that such amendment will not 

materially impair the interest of the registered owners and beneficial owners of the Bonds.  

If the Issuer so amends the provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended 

financial information or operating data next provided in accordance with subsection (a) of 

this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of the reason for the amendment and of the 

impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided.  

The Issuer may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement 

if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the Rule or a court of final 

jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to 

the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from 

lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds. 

 

Section 33.  ATTORNEY GENERAL FEES.  The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs 

payment from legally available funds of the Issuer, of the nonrefundable examination fee of the 

Attorney General of the State of Texas required by Section 1202.004, Texas Government Code, 

as amended. 

 

Section 34.  REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  All resolutions and all parts 

of any resolutions which are in conflict or inconsistent with this Resolution are hereby repealed 

and shall be of no further force or effect to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency. 

 

Section 35.  SECURITY INTEREST.  Article 1208, Government Code, applies to the 

issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of the Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this 

Section, and is therefore valid, effective, and perfected.  Should Texas law be amended at any time 

while the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the result of such amendment being that the pledge 

of the Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this Section is to be subject to the filing 

requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, in order to preserve to the registered 

owners of the Bonds a security interest in said pledge, the Issuer agrees to take such measures as 

it determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable 

provisions of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code and enable a filing of a security interest in 

said pledge to occur. 

 

Section 36.  TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD.  The provisions of this Section 

shall apply so long as the Bonds, or any of them, are owned by the TWDB.  The Issuer hereby 

agrees to comply with all conditions set forth in TWDB Resolution No. 20-075, which conditions 

are incorporated herein. 

 

 (a)  Annual Audit Reporting.  The Issuer shall provide the Texas Water Development Board 

with an annual report prepared in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a 

certified public accountant or licensed public accountant, to be submitted without charge within 

120 days of the close of each fiscal year. 

 

67



 

38 

 (b)  Covenant to Abide with Rules.  The Issuer will abide with all applicable laws of the 

State of Texas and Rules of the Texas Water Development Board relating to the loan of funds 

evidenced by the Bonds and the Project for which the Bonds are issued, sold and delivered. 

 

 (c)  Water Conservation Program.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will implement 

an approved water conservation program in accordance with 31 TAC § 371.71. 

 

 (d)  Records and Accounts.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will maintain current, 

accurate and complete records and accounts regarding the System in accordance with 31 TAC § 

371.71. 

 

 (e)  Environmental Determinations.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will comply 

with any special conditions of the environmental determination of the Executive Administrator in 

accordance with 31 TAC § 371.71. 

 

 (f)  Prohibition on Use of Proceeds.  The Issuer covenants and agrees that none of the 

proceeds of the Bonds will be expended on costs incurred or to be incurred relating to the sampling, 

testing, removing or disposing of potentially contaminated soils and/or media at the project site. 

 

 (g)  Indemnification.  The Issuer further agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to 

indemnify, hold harmless and protect the Texas Water Development Board from any and all claims 

or causes of action or damages to the person or property of third parties arising from the sampling, 

analysis, transport, storage, treatment, removal and off site disposition of any contaminated sewage 

sludge, contaminated sediments and/or contaminated media that may be generated by the Issuer, 

its contractors, consultants, agents, officials and employees as a result of activities relating to the 

Project. 

 

 (h)  Conveyance of Obligations.  Prior to any action by the Issuer to convey its obligations 

under the Bonds to another entity, if permitted by law, the conveyance and the assumption of such 

obligations must be approved by the Texas Water Development Board.  The Issuer shall notify the 

Executive Administrator prior to taking any actions to alter its legal status in any manner, such a 

sale-transfer-merger with another retail public utility. 

 

 (i)  Davis-Bacon Act Compliance.  All laborers and mechanics employed by contractors 

and subcontractors for the Project who are paid from proceeds of the Bonds on deposit in the 

Construction Fund shall be paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a similar 

character in the locality of the Issuer in accordance with the federal Davis-Bacon Act and the U.S. 

Department of Labor's implementing regulations pertaining thereto. 

 

 (j)  Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.  The Issuer shall provide the 

Texas Water Development Board with all information required by the Federal Funding 

Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, Pub. L. 109-282. 

 

 (k)  DUNS Number and CAGE Code.  The Issuer shall obtain a Data Information 

Numbering System (DUNS) Number and shall register with the System for Award Management 

to obtain a Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) Code, and maintain current registration 

at all times during which the Bonds are outstanding. 

68



 

39 

 

 (l)  Timely Expenditures.  All proceeds of the Bonds will be timely and expeditiously used, 

as required by applicable federal statutes and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regulations, 

and the Issuer shall adhere to a project construction schedule acceptable to the Executive 

Administrator that facilitates timely use of funds and project completion. 

 

 (m)  As-Built Plans.  The Issuer shall provide to the Texas Water Development Board a 

full and complete set of "as-built" plans relating to the Project, promptly upon completion of the 

Project. 

 

 (n)  Final Accounting.  The Issuer shall render a final accounting of the cost of the Project 

to the Texas Water Development Board within 60 days of the completion of the Project.  If the 

total cost of the Project, as finally completed, is less than originally estimated, so that the proper 

share of the participation by the Texas Water Development Board in the Project is reduced, such 

surplus proceeds shall be used in accordance with subsection (o) below. 

 

 (o)  Surplus Proceeds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution or the Bonds 

restricting early redemption of the Bonds, the Issuer shall use any surplus proceeds from the Bonds 

that are determined to be surplus funds remaining after completion of the project and completion 

of a final accounting in a manner as approved by the Texas Water Development Board’s 

(“TWDB”) Executive Administrator (the “Executive Administrator”), including without limitation 

to redeem, on any date, the Bonds owned by the TWDB, at a price of par plus accrued interest to 

the date fixed for redemption. 

 

 (p)  Insurance.  Insurance coverage be obtained and maintained by the Issuer in an amount 

sufficient to protect the interest of the Texas Water Development Board in the Project. 

 

 (q)  Remedies.  The TWDB may exercise all remedies available to it in law or equity, and 

any provision of the Bonds or this Resolution that restricts or limits the TWDB's full exercise of 

such remedies shall be of no force and effect. 

 

 (r)  American Iron and Steel Requirements.  The Issuer will abide by all applicable 

construction contract requirements related to the use of iron and steel products in the United States, 

as required by the 2014 Federal Appropriations Act and related State Revolving Fund Policy 

Guidelines. 

 

 (s)  Covenant Regarding Taxes and System Rates.  The Issuer hereby agrees that, for so 

long as the Bonds are outstanding, to maintain and collect sufficient rates and charges to produce 

System revenues in an amount necessary to meet the debt service requirements of all Bonds and 

to maintain the funds established and required by the Bonds. 

 

 (t)  Outlay Reports.  The Issuer shall submit outlay reports with sufficient documentation 

on costs on a quarterly or monthly basis in accordance with TWDB outlay report guidelines. 

 

Section 37.  FURTHER PROCEDURES.  (a) The President and Secretary, respectively, of 

the Board of Directors of the Issuer, the General Manager, Operations Manager, and Chief 

Financial Officer of the Issuer, and all other officers, employees, and agents of the Issuer, and each 

69



 

40 

of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to 

time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and 

deliver in the name and under the corporate seal and on behalf of the Issuer all such instruments, 

whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms 

and provisions of this Resolution, the Bonds, and the sale of the Bonds, including without 

limitation the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations to DTC.  The expenses of issuing the Bonds 

shall be paid from the proceeds from the sale of the Initial Bond.  In case any officer whose 

signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bond, 

such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer 

had remained in office until such delivery. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 

70



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 ESCROW AGREEMENT 

 

(Attached) 

 

71



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. D. 

RWRD RESO 20230726-04 

City of Maud Contract Amendment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230726-05 

 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO EXECUTE AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF MAUD, 

TEXAS FOR CERTAIN WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Maud, Texas formed in 1941 is a General Law Municipality 

operating under an aldermanic form of government consisting of a mayor and five aldermen in 

accordance with applicable state statutes, serving a current population of 1,056 residents based 

on the most recent 2010 Census; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 1, 2022 and April 18, 2023 Riverbend and the City of Maud, 

Texas executed agreements for wastewater and water services respectively; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has a need to amend the contract to 

clarify the true-up process reviewing over-recovery or under-recovery of operational costs.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall be 

and is hereby authorized to an amendment to the interlocal agreement providing certain water 

and wastewater services to the City of Maud, Texas on terms substantially the same as 

attached hereto and further reviewed by general counsel. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of July 2023 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

Attached: Services Contract Amendment-City of Maud 

 

73



1 

 

 

FIRST AMENDED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR  

WATER AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 

This First Amended Interlocal Agreement for Water and Wastewater System Operations 

and Maintenance Services (this “Agreement”) is entered into and effective on the _____ day of 

__________ , 2023 (the “Effective Date”) between Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, and the City of Maud, Texas, a city 

incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas (“City”), each acting by and through its 

undersigned, duly authorized representatives.  Riverbend and City may be individually referred to 

as “Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties.”  This Agreement shall supersede and amend 

the Interlocal Agreement for Water and Wastewater System Operations and Maintenance Services 

effective on or about April 18, 2023, as to the Articles and Sections reflected herein, but not 

otherwise.  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Texas Legislature has authorized the formulation of interlocal cooperation 

agreements between and among governmental entities pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 

Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, as amended;  

 

 WHEREAS, City owns and operates a water storage and distribution system within its 

corporate boundaries; and 

 

 WHEREAS, City owns and operates a wastewater treatment and distribution system within 

its corporate boundaries; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend provides water and wastewater operation and maintenance services; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it would be advantageous for Riverbend to 

manage, operate, and maintain City’s water storage and distribution system and its wastewater 

collection facilities;  

 

 WHEREAS, the governing bodies of each Party find that the undertaking is necessary for the 

benefit of the public, is in the common interest of both Parties and that each Party has the legal 

authority to provide such service;  

 

 WHEREAS, the covenants and promises set forth in this Agreement constitute adequate 

consideration to each Party; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties, in paying for the performance of governmental functions or in 

performing such governmental functions pursuant to this Agreement shall make payments therefore 

only from current revenues legally available to such Party. 

 

Therefore, for and in consideration of the premises, and the mutual agreements set forth 

below, Riverbend and City agree as follows: 

 

 

74



2 

 

 

 

AGREEMENTS 

 

ARTICLE III.  

TERM, TERMINATION & COMPENSATION 

 

3.2 Compensation. 

 

e. True up.  Riverbend shall annually conduct a “true-up” review to determine whether 

there was any over-recovery or under-recovery of its operational costs which will 

include a nine and six hundredths percent (9.06%) administrative fee during that fiscal 

year in relation to City’s Standard Monthly Payment annualized for the applicable 

year.  Any over-recovery or under-recovery of costs shall be carried over as a credit 

or debit to City or Riverbend, as applicable.  Said credit or debit shall be applied to 

City’s Standard Monthly Payment such that the credit or debit shall be extinguished 

by the end of the following fiscal year.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



3 

 

 

 

EXECUTED on the date or dates indicated below, to be effective as of the Effective Date: 

 

 

RIVERBEND: 

 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES 

DISTRICT 

 

        ____________________________________ 

By:   Kyle Dooley, Executive Director 

 

Date: _______________________________ 

 

 

      Address:   228A Texas Avenue   

        New Boston, TX 75570 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  

COUNTY OF BOWIE  

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Kyle Dooley is the person who 

appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that said person signed this instrument, on oath 

stated that said person was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Executive 

Director of Riverbend Water Resources District to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the 

uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 

DATED:  _______________________________. 

 

Notary Seal  

 

  

(Signature of Notary) 

 

  

(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 

 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 

My appointment expires:    

 

 

 

 

 

76



4 

 

 

CITY: 

 

CITY OF MAUD 

 

    

 By:  Jimmy Clary, Mayor      

 

Date:   

 

Address: 203 Main St. 

 Maud, TX 75567 

  

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  

COUNTY OF BOWIE  

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ___________________________ is 

the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that said person signed this 

instrument, on oath stated that said person was authorized to execute the instrument and 

acknowledged it as the _________________________________ of City of Maud, to be the free and 

voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 

DATED:  _______________________________. 

 

 

Notary Seal  

 

  

(Signature of Notary) 

 

  

(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 

 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 

My appointment expires:    

 

77



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. E. 

RWRD RESO 20230726-05 

Member Entities True-Up 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78



   
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230726-05 

 

ADOPTING THE FY 2022-2023 MEMBER ENTITIES’ TRUE-UP  

AND WHOLESALE WATER RATES AND FEES OF THE 

TEXARKANA WATER UTILITIES 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is charged with oversight of the annual 

True-Up conducted amongst and between the City of Texarkana, Texas and all Member Entities; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District held an annual True-Up meeting on July 

19, 2023 at the Riverbend offices to discuss the True-Up Process and information provided by the 

City of Texarkana, Texas and its water department through Texarkana Water Utilities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2022-2023 Member Entities’ True-Up and 

wholesale water rates and fees of the Texarkana Water Utilities. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of July 2023  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

Attached: 2022-2023 Member City Rate Calculation  

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. F. 

RWRD RESO 20230726-06 

City of Maud Service  

Contract True-Up 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

111



   
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230726-06 

 

ADOPTING THE FY 2022-2023 CITY OF MAUD SERVICE CONTRACT TRUE-UP  

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Maud, Texas formed in 1941 is a General Law Municipality 

operating under an aldermanic form of government consisting of a mayor and five aldermen in 

accordance with applicable state statutes, serving a current population of 1,056 residents based on 

the most recent 2010 Census; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District and the City of Maud, Texas entered into 

interlocal water and wastewater services agreements on April 18, 2023 and October 1, 2022; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in compliance with the water and wastewater agreements, Riverbend Water 

Resources District held a meeting on July 19, 2023 at the Riverbend offices to discuss the True-Up 

Process and new contract amounts with the City of Maud, Texas. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2022-2023 City of Maud Service Contract True-

Up. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of July 2023  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

Attached: 2022-2023 City of Maud Service  

    Contract True-Up Documents 

112



Waste Water Billed Difference Water Billed Difference Total

FY 23 Actual Contract Cost Actual vs. Actual Contract Cost Actual vs. Over/Under 

Month Cost Waste Water Billed Cost Water Billed Billed

Oct-22 $14,698.78 $9,583.33 $5,115.45 $5,115.45

Nov-22 $9,098.20 $9,583.33 ($485.13) ($485.13)

Dec-22 $7,288.41 $9,583.33 ($2,294.92) ($2,294.92)

Jan-23 $14,966.13 $9,583.33 $5,382.80 $5,382.80

Feb-23 $10,392.02 $9,583.33 $808.69 $808.69

Mar-23 $15,410.14 $9,583.33 $5,826.81 $576.90 $1,745.00 ($1,168.10) $4,658.71

Apr-23 $15,755.99 $9,583.33 $6,172.66 $217.94 $1,745.00 ($1,527.06) $4,645.60

May-23 $15,102.94 $9,583.33 $5,519.61 $66.00 $1,745.00 ($1,679.00) $3,840.61

Jun-23

Jul-23

Aug-23

Sep-23

Total: $102,712.61 $76,666.64 $26,045.97 $860.84 $5,235.00 ($4,374.16) $21,671.81

*Oct-Feb Contract was only WW Service

FY 23 True-Up: $21,671.81 Under billed when compared to contract amount

Monthly Cost for FY 23: $1,805.98 Monthly cost to be added to FY 24 amount

Current FY 23 Monthly Rate: $11,328.00

FY 24 Monthly Rate: $13,133.98 15.94% Increase from Previous Year

Fiscal Year 23 Maud Water and Waste Water True Up

113



MAUD WASTEWATER SERVICES FY 22-23

OCTOBER 2022 NOVEMBER 2022

TRUE UP TRUE UP

Actual Expenses $13,123.92 Actual Expenses $8,123.39

Contracted ($8,556.55) Contracted ($8,556.55)

$4,567.37 ($433.16)

Actual Admin Fee $1,574.87 Actual Admin Fee $974.81

Contracted ($1,026.78) Contracted ($1,026.78)

$548.09 ($51.97)

Actual Monthly $14,698.78 Actual Monthly $9,098.20

Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33) Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33)

$5,115.45 UNDER BILLED ($485.13) OVER BILLED

Quick Summary
Oct-22 $5,115.45

Nov-22 ($485.13)

Dec-22 ($2,294.92)

Jan-23 $5,382.80

Feb-23 $808.69

Mar-23 $4,658.71

Apr-23 $4,645.60

May-23 $3,840.61

Jun-23

Jul-23

$21,671.81 Black=Under Billed

Red=Over Billed

114



DECEMBER 2022 JANUARY 2023

TRUE UP TRUE UP

Actual Expenses $6,507.51 Actual Expenses $13,362.62

Contracted ($8,556.55) Contracted ($8,556.55)

($2,049.05) $4,806.07

Actual Admin Fee $780.90 Actual Admin Fee $1,603.51

Contracted ($1,026.78) Contracted ($1,026.78)

($245.88) $576.73

Actual Monthly $7,288.41 Actual Monthly $14,966.13

Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33) Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33)

($2,294.92) OVER BILLED $5,382.80 UNDER BILLED

115



FEBRUARY 2023 MARCH 2023

TRUE UP TRUE UP

Actual Expenses $9,278.59 Actual Expenses $13,759.05

Contracted ($8,556.55) Contracted ($8,556.55)

$722.04 $5,202.50

Actual Admin Fee $1,113.43 Actual Admin Fee $1,651.09

Contracted ($1,026.78) Contracted ($1,026.78)

$86.65 $624.31

Actual Monthly $10,392.02 Actual Monthly $15,410.14

Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33) Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33)

$808.69 UNDER BILLED $5,826.81 UNDER BILLED

MARCH 2023 WATER

TRUE UP

Actual Expenses $576.90

Contracted ($1,745.00)

($1,168.10)

Actual Admin Fee $0.00

Contracted $0.00

$0.00

Actual Monthly $576.90

Monthyly Billed ($1,745.00)

($1,168.10) OVER BILLED

MONTHLY OVERALL $4,658.71

116



APRIL 2023 MAY 2023

TRUE UP TRUE UP

Actual Expenses $14,067.85 Actual Expenses $13,484.77

Contracted ($8,556.55) Contracted ($8,556.55)

$5,511.30 $4,928.22

Actual Admin Fee $1,688.14 Actual Admin Fee $1,618.17

Contracted ($1,026.78) Contracted ($1,026.78)

$661.36 $591.39

Actual Monthly $15,755.99 Actual Monthly $15,102.94

Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33) Monthyly Billed ($9,583.33)

$6,172.66 UNDER BILLED $5,519.61 UNDER BILLED

APRIL 2023 WATER MAY 2023 WATER

TRUE UP TRUE UP

Actual Expenses $217.94 Actual Expenses $66.00

Contracted ($1,745.00) Contracted ($1,745.00)

($1,527.06) ($1,679.00)

Actual Admin Fee $0.00 Actual Admin Fee $0.00

Contracted $0.00 Contracted $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

Actual Monthly $217.94 Actual Monthly $66.00

Monthyly Billed ($1,745.00) Monthyly Billed ($1,745.00)

($1,527.06) OVER BILLED ($1,679.00) OVER BILLED

MONTHLY OVERALL $4,645.60 MONTHLY OVERALL $3,840.61

117


	Insert from: "Revised - Member Cities True-up Meeting Docs 2024.pdf"
	Summary
	2.40 RWRD Fee
	MC Usage
	Budget to Actual


